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TO THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT 

OF CALIFORNIA, AND TO PLAINTIFF AND HIS ATTORNEYS OF RECORD: 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE THAT pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1367, 1441, and 1446, 

Defendants Amazon.com, Inc., Amazon.com Services, LLC (formerly known and erroneously 

sued as Amazon.com Services, Inc.), and Amazon Logistics, Inc. (collectively, “Amazon”) 

hereby remove the above-entitled action from the Superior Court of the State of California, 

County of Los Angeles, to the United States District Court for the Central District of California.  

This Court has original subject matter jurisdiction in the form of federal question jurisdiction 

pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331 because the Complaint asserts claims arising under the laws of the 

United States.   

Amazon states the following in support of this removal: 

I. SUMMARY OF COMPLAINT 

1. On September 15, 2021, Plaintiff Narek Mike Melikyan (“Plaintiff”) filed an 

unverified class action complaint in the Superior Court of the State of California, County of Los 

Angeles, entitled Narek Mike Melikyan v. Amazon.com, Inc. et al., Case No. 21STCV34067 (the 

“Complaint”).  The Complaint alleges five causes of action: (1) violation of 15 U.S.C. § 

1681b(b)(2)(A) (Fair Credit Reporting Act (“FCRA”)); (2) violation of 15 U.S.C. §§ 1681d(a)(1) 

and 1681g(c) (FCRA); (3) violation of California Civil Code §§ 1786 et seq. (Investigative 

Consumer Reporting Agencies Act); (4) violation of California Civil Code §§ 1785 et seq. 

(Consumer Credit Reporting Agencies Act); and (5) violation of Business & Professions Code §§ 

17200 et seq. (California’s Unfair Competition Law). 

2. On September 15, 2021, the Superior Court issued a Notice of Case Assignment 

assigning the case to Judge Kenneth R. Freeman.  On September 22, 2021, the Superior Court 

issued an Order of Recusal and temporarily transferred the case to Judge David S. Cunningham 

for reassignment purposes because Judge Freeman recused himself.  On September 30, 2021, the 

Superior Court issued an Order of Case Reassignment and reassigned the case to Judge Amy D. 

Hogue. 

3. On October 6, 2021, Plaintiff caused the Complaint, Summons, Civil Case Cover 
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Sheet, Notice of Case Assignment, Order of Recusal, and Order of Case Reassignment to be 

served on Amazon.com Services, Inc. and Amazon Logistics, Inc., respectively.  True and correct 

copies of the documents served on Amazon.com Services, Inc. and Amazon Logistics, Inc., 

respectively, are attached as Exhibits 1 and 2  and incorporated by reference.  On October 8, 

2021, Plaintiff caused the Complaint, Summons, Civil Case Cover Sheet, Notice of Case 

Assignment, Order of Recusal, and Order of Case Reassignment to be served on Amazon.com, 

Inc.  True and correct copies of the documents served on Amazon.com, Inc. are attached as 

Exhibit 3 and incorporated by reference.   

4. On October 6, 2021, the Superior Court issued a minute order setting an Initial 

Status Conference for December 10, 2021 and a minute order regarding a newly assigned case.  

True and correct copies of these documents are attached as Exhibit 4 and incorporated by 

reference. 

5. On October 19, 2021, Plaintiff filed three Proofs of Personal Service as to the three 

Amazon defendants.  True and correct copies of these documents are attached as Exhibit 5 and 

incorporated by reference. 

6. On November 3, 2021, Amazon filed and served its Answer to the Complaint.  A 

true and correct copy of Amazon’s Answer is attached as Exhibit 6 and incorporated by 

reference. 

7. The Complaint, Summons, Civil Case Cover Sheet, Notice of Case Assignment, 

Order of Recusal, Order of Reassignment, Proofs of Personal Service, and the Answer (attached 

hereto as Exhibits 1-6, respectively) constitute all process, pleadings and orders that have been 

filed and served in this action. 

II. THE REMOVAL IS TIMELY 

8.  This Notice of Removal is filed within thirty (30) days after service of the 

Summons and Complaint on Amazon on October 6, 2021.  Accordingly, this Notice of Removal 

is timely under 28 U.S.C. § 1446(b).   

III. FEDERAL QUESTION JURISDICTION EXISTS UNDER 28 U.S.C. § 1331 

9. This is a civil action over which this Court has original jurisdiction pursuant to 28 
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U.S.C. § 1331 and is one which may be removed pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1441(a). 

10. Federal question jurisdiction exists under 28 U.S.C. § 1331 where a complaint 

asserts a claim “arising under the Constitution, laws, or treatises of the United States.”  See 28 

U.S.C. § 1331; Ethridge v. Harbor House Rest., 861 F.2d 1389, 1393-94 (9th Cir. 1988) (“When 

a plaintiff’s complaint relies on federal law as the source of recovery, it is obvious that the case 

‘arises under’ federal law and therefore may be removed to federal court.”).  The presence or 

absence of federal question jurisdiction is governed by the “well-pleaded” complaint rule, which 

provides that federal jurisdiction exists “when a federal question is presented on the face of the 

plaintiff’s properly pleaded complaint.”  Id. at 1394. 

11. This Court has original jurisdiction over the action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331 

because Plaintiff has alleged two claims under the FCRA, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1681 et seq., which is a 

federal statute and presents a federal question. 

IV. THE COURT HAS SUPPLEMENTAL JURISDICTION OVER PLAINTIFF’S 
STATE LAW CLAIMS UNDER 28 U.S.C. § 1367. 

12. This Court has supplemental jurisdiction over Plaintiff’s claims under California 

law pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367(a) on the grounds that such claims are “so related to the claims 

in the action within such original jurisdiction that they form part of the same case or controversy 

under Article III of the United States Constitution.” 

13. Plaintiff’s Complaint alleges a total of five claims, the first two of which arise 

under the FCRA.  The remaining three state law claims arise out of the same case or controversy 

as the federal claims over which this Court has original jurisdiction because all such claims relate 

to an alleged background check conducted in connection with Plaintiff becoming an Amazon Flex 

delivery driver.  See Compl., ¶¶ 64-100.  Therefore, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367(a), this Court 

may properly exercise supplemental jurisdiction over Plaintiff’s state law claims.  Further, 

Plaintiff’s state law claims do not involve any novel or complex issue of state law, do not 

substantially predominate over Plaintiff’s FCRA claims, and no exceptional or compelling 

circumstances exist for this Court to decline jurisdiction.  28 U.S.C. § 1367(a).    
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V. VENUE IS PROPER. 

14. Plaintiff originally filed this action in the Superior Court of the State of California, 

County of Los Angeles.  Thus, venue for removal properly lies in the United States District Court 

for the Central District of California (28 U.S.C. § 84(a), 1446) and this action may be removed to 

this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1441(a) because this district embraces the place in which the 

removed state action is and has been pending. 

VI. THE OTHER PRE-REQUISITES FOR REMOVAL HAVE BEEN SATISFIED. 

15. As set forth above, this Notice of Removal is filed within thirty (30) days of 

service of process on Amazon and all process, pleadings, and orders filed in this action are 

attached hereto in Exhibits 1–6. 

16. No previous Notice of Removal has been filed or made with this Court for the 

relief sought. 

17. As required by 28 U.S.C. § 1446(d), Amazon will promptly serve Plaintiff with 

this Notice of Removal and will promptly file a copy of this Notice of Removal with the Superior 

Court of the State of California, County of Los Angeles.   

18. Amazon is informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that none of the 

fictitiously-named defendants have been identified by Plaintiff or served with the Summons and 

Complaint.  In addition, Doe defendants need not be joined in a notice of removal.  See Fristoe v. 

Reynolds Metals Co., 615 F.2d 1209, 213 (9th Cir. 1980). 

19. If any question arises as to the propriety of the removal of this action, Amazon 

requests the opportunity to present a brief and oral argument in support of its position that this 

case is removable. 

20. By this Notice of Removal and the exhibits attached hereto and the documents 

filed concurrently herewith, Amazon does not intend to make any admissions of fact, law or 

liability relating to the claims in the Complaint, and it expressly reserves the right to make any 

and all defenses and motions necessary in its defense against Plaintiff’s allegations. 

WHEREFORE, Amazon respectfully requests that this action be removed from the 

Superior Court of the State of California, County of Los Angeles to the United States District 
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Court for the Central District of California.  

 
Dated:  November 4, 2021 MORGAN, LEWIS & BOCKIUS LLP 

By /s/ Andrew P. Frederick  
Andrew P. Frederick 
Aleksandr Markelov 

Attorneys for Defendants 
AMAZON.COM, INC.; AMAZON.COM 
SERVICES, LLC (formerly known and 
erroneously sued as AMAZON.COM 
SERVICES, INC.); and AMAZON LOGISTICS, 
INC. 

 

Case 2:21-cv-08715-FMO-E   Document 1   Filed 11/04/21   Page 7 of 7   Page ID #:7



EXHIBIT 1 

Case 2:21-cv-08715   Document 1-1   Filed 11/04/21   Page 1 of 43   Page ID #:8



SUMMONS 
(CITACION JUDICIAL) 

NOTICE TO DEFENDANT: 
(AVISO AL DEMAND,4D0): 
AMAZON.COM, INC.; AMAZON.COM SERVICES, INC,; AMAZON LOGISTICS; INC.; and DOES 1 to 100, inclusive 

YOU ARE BE1NG SUED BY PLAINTIFF: 
(LO E'STi4 DE'MANDANDO EL DEMANDANTE): 

IVAREK MIKE ivtELIKYAN, on behalf of himselfand othera similarly sittiated 

c  ,9=0 6vbroopy 
MaKAIA,fi) 

Su rtor Cotxt o1 Catifomla 
igoutyy of Los Angeiea 

SEp 15 2021 
P. Ca1tAi, ER8(X}1N0 0gIc®rMi( t3f 

By. Mthe Varps, Dal* 

may decide agalnst you you 

You have 30 CALENDAft DAYS after this summons and legal papers are served on you to file a written tesponse at this court. artd have a copy 
served on the plaintiff. A letter or phone call wiil not protect you. Yotir written response musl be in proper legal form if you want the .court to hear your 
case. There may be a court form thal you can use for your response. You can find these court forms and more informalion at the California Courts 
Dntine, Self-Help Center (www.courtinfo.ca.gov/selfhelp), your county law iibrary, or the courthouse nearest you. If you cannot pay the filing fee, ask.the 

court cierk for a ₹ee waiver form, lf you, do not file your respqnse on time, you may lose the case by defauit, and your wages, money, and property may 

be. taken without further waming from the court. 
There are other legal requitemenls. Yoti may want to call an attomey ri9ht away. If you do not know an attomey, you tnay want to call an attorney 

referral service. If you cannot arford an attorney, you may be eligible for free legal servicesYrom a nonproFlt legal services prograrh. You can.locale 

these nonprofit _groups at the California Legal Services Web slte (wWwJawhetpcalifornia.org), the Caiifornia Courts Online Seif-Help Center 
(www.courtlnfo.ca.gov/selfhelp), or by contacting your local court or county bar assoclation. NOTE: The courl has a statutory lien for waived fees and 
costs on any settlement or arbitration award of $10,000 or tnore in a civil case. The court's Ilen inusl be paid before the court will dismiss the case. 

tAVISO! Lo han demandado. Sino responde dentro de 30 dtas, la corte puede decidtren su contra sin escucharsu versl6n. Lea la informacl6n a 

Tiene 30 DIAS OE CALENDARIO despues de que le entreguen esta citacr6n ypapeles legales para prosentar una respuesta porescrito en esta 
code y hacer que se entregue una copia al demandanle. Una catfa o una 1lamada telef6'nlca no !o protegen. Su respuesta pqr escrjto tfene que estar 

en fonvato legal correcto si desea que procesen su caso en la corte. Es poslble que.haya un formillario que usted pueda trsar para su respuesta. 

PuecJe encontrar estos formularios de la corte ymds informacl6n en el Centro de Ayuda de las Cortes de Caiifomia (wuvw.sucorte.ca.gov), en ta 

biblioteca de leyes da su condado o en fa eorte que le quede m9s carca. 51 nopuede pagarla cuota de presentacl6n, prda al secretarfo de la corfe que 

le de un farmulario de exenci6n de pago de cuotas. Si no presenta su respuesta a tiempo, puede peiderel caso por tncumplimiento y ta corte le podr3 
qultar su sueldo, dlnero y blenes sin mds advertencia. 

7-layofios requfsitos tegales. Es recomendable que Ilame a un abogado tnmediatamente. Si no conoce a un abogado, puede tlamar a un servicio de 

remisibn. a abogad'os. St no puede pagar a' un abogado, es posfble que cumpla con tos requisitos para obtener servicios legafes gratuitos de un 
programa de servicios fegales sin frnes de lucro: Puede encontrarestos grupos sin rrnes de lucro en el sitfo web de California Legal Services, 
(www.taWhelpcatifomia.org), en el Centro de'Ayuda de !as Cortes de Califomia, (www. sucorte: ca.gov) o pbniendose en contacto con la corte o el 

colegio de abogados locales. AVISO: Por ley, la corte tiene derecho a reclafnar fas cuotas y los costos exentos por lmponer un gravamen sobre 

cualquferrecuperaci6n de $10,000 d mas de valorrecibida mediante un acuerdo o una concestdn de arbitraje en un caso de derecho clvil. Tiene que 

pagar ef gravamen de la corte antes de que la' corte pueda desechar el caso. 

The name and address o.f the court is: Stantey lvtosk Courthouse CAS UM~E~,~(Numero del 

(EI nombre.y direcci6n de la corte es): 1 l 1 N. Hlll Street  ~' ~'i 9 
Los Angetes,. CA 90012 

The name, address, and telephone number of plaintiffs attorney, or plaintiff without an attorney, is: (El nombre, la direcci6n y el numero 

de. tef6fono del abogado def demandante o det demandante que nq tiene. abogado, es): 
Joseph Lavi, Esq, (SBN 209776); Yincent C. Gran6rry, Esq. (SBN 276483); Kevin loseph Farnan (SBtJ 327524); T: 310-432-0000; F: 310-432-0001 

Lavi & Ebrahimian, LLP; 8889 W, Olympic Bivd., Suite 200; Beverly Hills, CA 90211 
DATE: ~1 q Clerk, by Deputy 
(Fecha) SHERRI R. OAR SEP  1 ,~} ~OZi (Secretario) ~ (AdJunto) T'~~  
(Por proof of service of this summons, use Proof of Service of Summons (form POS-010),) 

(Para p"rueba de entrega de esta citation use el formularlo Proof of Service of Summohs, (POS-090),) 

ISEALI 
NOTICE TO THE PERSON SERVED; You are served 

1. as an Individual defendant. 

2.: as the person sued under the fictitious name of (specify): 

3: X~] on behalf of (specify): AmaZorl .corn Services, Irlc. 
under: _X[— J_ CCP 416.ia (corporation) CCP 416,60 (rriinor) 

[~ CCP 416.20 (defunct.corporation) [] CCP 416,70 (conservatee) 

~ CGP 416,40 (association or partnership) 0 CCP 41G.90 (authorized person) 

F—I other (specify): 

4. MI by personal delivery ot1 (date) )~) ~~7 Paee I 

Fonn Adopled for Mandatoiy lJso S U M Nl O NS 
Judlclal Cauncil arCalifomia 
Si1M400 lRev..Juiy 1, 20091 

......._....-........ ._. -...,_. ..... :..:...: 
For:your,ptotect[on:and:prhlacy, pTease;,p:r s.tl5es, es 

This Fo fm bt{tton attet you have printed tt~e form t ' pnnf tFi~s; for"rr Save this fi~m 

Code of Clyl ProcedUre y5 41220, 465 
www.crourts.ca.gov 

rCtears "~~~r• thIs~#orm.: 
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Joseph Lavi, Esq. (SBN 209776) 
Vincent C. Granberry, Esq. (SBN 276483) 
Anwar D. Burton, Esq. (SBN 252504) 
Kevin Joseph Faman (SBN 327524) 
LAVI & EBRAHIMIAN, LLP 
8889 W. Olympic Boulevard, Suite 200 
Beverly Hills, California 90211 
Telephone: (310) 432-0000 
Facsimile: (310) 432-0001 
Email: whteam@lelawfirm.com 

NAREK MIKE MELIKYAN, on behalf of 
himself and others similarly situated, 

Plaintiff, 

V9. 

AMAZON.COM, INC.; AMAZON.COM 
SERVICES, INC.; AMAZON LOGISTICS, 
INC.; and DOES 1 to 100, inclusive, 

Defendants. 

COPIFORMEC COPY 
oRlaltdAL FH.Ea 

SupeuoC ~ Los  Ange es  

SEP 15 2021 
SOIPf Ft G8rt6f, EN6CUliY6 OfflCBrlGA1k ol 

Blr. Kdstlna Vargae, Depuly 

CaseNo.RISTCV34a6? 
CLASS ACTION 

PLAINTIFF NAREK MIKE 
MELIKYAN'S COMPLAINT 
DAMAGES AND RESITUTION FOR: 

1. FAILURE TO PROVIDE 
DISCLOSURES OR, IN THE 
ALTERNATIVE, PROPER 
DISCLOSURES IN VIOLATION 
OF 15 U.S.C. § 1681b(b)(2)(A) (FAIR 
CREDIT REPORTING ACT) 

2. FAILURE TO PROVIDE 
SUMMARY OF RIGHTS IN 
VIOLATION OF 15 U.S.C. §§ 
1681d(a)(1) AND 1681g(c) (FAIR 
CREDIT REPORTING ACT) 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

la 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

Attorneys for Plaintiff NAREK MIKE MELIKYAN, 
on behalf of hirxzself and others similarly situated 

SUPERIOR COURT OF TIiE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

FOR THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES — CENTRAL DISTRICT 

3. VIOLATION OF CALIFORNIA 
CIVIL CODE § 1786, ET SEQ. 
(INVESTIGATIVE CONSUMER 
REPORTING AGENCIES ACT) 

4. VIOLATION OF CALIFORNIA 
CIVIL CODE § 1785, ET SEQ. 
(CONSUMER CREDIT 
REPORTING AGENCIES ACT) 

5. VIOLATION OF BUSINESS AND 
PROFESSIONS CODE § 17200, ET 
SEQ. (UNFAIR COMPETITION) 

I DEMA.ND FOR JURY TRIAL 

PLAINTTFF NAREK M110E MELTKYAN'S COIVIPLAINT 
~ 1 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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1 

2 
COMES NOW Plaintiff NAREK MIKE MELIKYAN ("Plaintiff'), individually, and on 

3 
behalf of others similarly situated, who alleges and complain against Defendants 

4 
AMAZON.COM, INC.; AMAZON.COM SERVICES, INC.; AMAZON LOGISTICS, INC.; and 

5 
DOES 1 to 100, inclusive (collectively, "Defendants") as follows: 

INTRODUCTION AND NATURE OF TAE ACTION 
6 

7 
l. This class action arises from the acquisition and use of consumer, investigative, 

8 
and/or credit reports (collectively referred to as "background reports") by Defendants, all of whom 

9 
are Delaware corporations, to conduct background checks on Plaintiff and similarly situated 

10 
prospective, current, and former employees who drove for Defendants as "Amazon Flex" delivery 

drivers. 
11 

12 
2. Defendants routinely obtain and use information from background reports in 

13 
connection with their hiring and employment practices without complying with state and federal 

14 
mandates for doing so. As part of this practice, Defendants failed to provide a requisite disclosure 

15 
form or, in the alternative, provide a disclosure form to Plaintiff and similarly situated Amazon 

16 
Flex delivery drivers, as part of their hiring process that was noncompliant with state and federal 

,statutes. 
17 

18 
3. Plaintif£, on his own behalf and on behalf of similarly situated Amazon Flex 

19 
delivery drivers , seek compensatory and punitive damages due to Defendants' willful or grossly 

20 
negligent conduct and its systematic and willful violations of, inter alfa, the Fair Credit Reporting 

21 
Act ("FCRA");  15 U.S.C. §§ 1681 et seq.; the Investigative Consumer Reporting Agencies Act 

22 
("ICRAA"), Cal. Civ. Code §§ 1786 et seq.; the Consumer Credit Reporting Agencies Act 

23 
("CCRAA"), Cal. Civ. Code §§ 1785 et seq.; and Cal'zfornia's Unfair Competition Law ("UCL"), 

24 
Cal. Bus. & Pro£ Code §§ 17200 et seq. 

25 
4. Defendants have violated the requirements under these statutes by failing to 

26 
provide required disclosures and/or failing to provide legally compliant disclosures. The 

27 
procurement of background reports for employment purposes is subject to strict disclosure 

28 
~ requirements under federal law pursuant to the FCRA and under California law pursuant to the 

PLAINTIFF NAREK MIKE 1VILLIKYAN'S C014IPLAINT 
2 
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i TCRAA and CCRAA. Among other things, Defendants may not procure background reports 

2 unless a"clear and conspicuous" disclosure is made in a stand-alone document that "consists 

3 solely of the disclosure" informing the applicant that a report may be obtained for employment 

4 purposes. This required disclosure document is sometimes referred to as a"pre-authorization 

5 form" or a"disclosure form." 

6 5. The reason for requiring that the disclosure be in a stand-alone document, 

7 according to the Federal Trade Commission ("FTC"), is to prevent consumers from being 

8 distracted by other information that is side-by-side within the disclosure. The FCRA seeks to 

9 protect important privacy rights and to ensure that consumers receive adequate disclosure and 

10 provide adequate authorization for background checks. A stand-alone disclosure form is critical to 

11 achieving that goal. 

12 6. Defendants failed to provide the required stand-alone disclosure form or, in the 

13 alternative, provided a disclosure form that contained extraneous and irrelevant information, 

14 which violates the requirement that the disclosure be made in a document that consists solely of 

15 the disclosure. Additionally, because Defendants failed to provide a diselosure form, Defendants 

16 failed to provide a clear and conspicuous disclosure form that may be understood by a reasonable 

17 reader or, in the alterative, Defendants' disclosure form failed to be clear and conspicuous because 

18 it contained language that would confuse a reasonable reader. For these reasons, among others, 

19 Defendants' failure to provide a disclosure form or, alternatively, the disclosure form provided by 

20 Defendants violated the law. 

21 7. As further alleged herein, Defendants' violations occurred because Defendants 

22 willfully failed to provide required disclostires or, alternatively, willfully failed to properly apprise 

23 him of the stattitory mandates before seeking, acquiring, and utilizing background reports for 

24 employment purposes; violated the express and unambiguous provisions of the relevant statutes; 

25 and/or failed to implement reasonable procedures to assure compliance with statutory mandates. 

26 8. As a result of Defendants' omissions and/or wrongful acts, Plaintiff and similarly 

27 situated Amazon Flex delivery drivers have been injured, including, without limitation, having 

28 their privacy and statutory rights invaded in violation of the FCRA, ICRA.A, and CCR.A.A. 
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1 9. Plaintiff, on behalf of himself and on behalf of similarly situated Amazon Flex 

2 delivery drivers , statutory, seeks actual and/or compensatory damages, punitive damages, and 

3 equitable relief, including costs and expenses of litigation including attorney's fees, and 

4 appropriate injunctive relief requiring Defendants to comply with their legal obligations, as well as 

5 additional and further relief that may be appropriate. Plaintiff reserves the right to amend this 

6 Complaint to add additional relief as permitted under applicable law. 

7 JURISDYCTION AND VENUE 

g 1. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction to hear this case because the monetary 

9 damages and restitution sought by Plaintiff exceeds the minimal jurisdiction limits of the Superior 

10 Court of the State of California and wilt be established according to proof at trial. 

11 2. This Court has jurisdiction over this aetion pursuant to the California Constitution, 

12 Article VI, Section 10, which grants the superior court "original jurisdiction in all other causes" 

13 except those given by statute to other courts. The statutes under which this action is brought do not 

14 specify any other basis for jurisdiction. 

15 3. This Court has jurisdiction over Defendants because, upon information and belief, 

16 Defendants have sufficient minimum contacts in California, or otherwise intentionally avails itself 

17 of the California market so as to render the exercise of jurisdiction over it by California courts 

18 consistent with traditional notions of fair play and substantial jListice. 

19 4. Venue is proper in this Court because, upon information and belief, Defendants 

20 regularly transact business in the State of California, including Los Angeles County. The majority 

21 of acts and omissions alleged herein relating to Plaintiff and putative class members took place in 

22 the State of California, including Los Angeles County. 

23 5. 

24 PARTIES 

25 6. Plaintiff is, and at all relevant times mentioned herein, an individual residing in the 

26 State of California. 

27 7. Defendant AMAZON.COM, INC., at all relevant times mentioned herein, was a 

28 corporation organized and existing under the laws of Delaware and is and was doing business in 
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Y. 

1 the State of California. ~ 

2 8. Defendant AMAZON.COM SERVICES. INC., at ali relevant times mentioned 

3 herein, was a corporation organized and existing under the laws of Delaware and is and was doing' 

4 business in the State of California 

5 9. Defendant AMAZON LOGISTICS, INC. is, and at all relevant times mentioned 

6 herein, was a corporation organized and existing under the laws of Delaware and is and was doing 

7 business in the State of California. 

8 10. Plaintiff is ignorant of the true names, capacities, relationships, and extent of 

9 participation in the conduct alleged herein, of the Defendants sued as DOES I through 100, 

10 inchlsive, but is informed and believes and thereupon alleges that the defendants are legally 

11 responsible for the wrongfiil conduct alleged herein and therefore sues these Defendants by such 

12 fictitious names. Plaintiff will amend the Complaint to alleges the true names and capacities of 

13 the DOE defendants when ascertained. 

14 11. Plaintiff is informed and believes and thereon alleges that, at all relevant times 

15 herein, all Defendants were the agents, employees and/or servants, masters or employ.ers of the 

16 remaining defendants, and in doing the things hereinafter alleged, were acting within the course 

17 and scope of such agency or employment, and with the approvaI and ratification of each of the 

18 other Defendants. 

19 12. Plaintiff alleges that each and every one of the acts and omissions alleged he.rein 

20 were performed by, and/or attributable to, all Defendants, each acting as agents and/or employees, 

21 and/or under the direction and control of each of the other defendants, and that said acts and 

22 failures to act were within the course and scope of said agency, employment and/or direction and 

23 control. 

24 FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS COMMON TO ALL CAUSES OF ACTION 

25 13. In or around October 2019, Defendants hired Plaintiff NAREK MIKE 

26 MELIKYAN as an Amazon Flex delivery driver. 

27 14. Plaintiff alleges in that evaluating him for his position as an Amazon Flex delivery 

28 driver, Defenda.nts procured or.  caused to be prepared a background report (i.e., a consumer report 
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1 and/or investigative consumer report, as defined by 15 U.S.C. § 1681a(d)(1)(B) and 15 U.S.C. § 

2 1681a(e), a consumer credit report, as defined by Cal. Civ. Code Section 1785.3(c), and/or an' 

3 investigative consumer report, as defined by Cal. Civ. Code Section 1786.2(c)). 

4 15. On or about August 29, 2020, Plaintiff discovered Defendants' violations of the 

5 FCRA, ICRAA, and/or CCR.AA he obtained a copy of his background report and related 

6 documents from Defendants' thirty-party background report provide, Accurate Background, Inc., 

7 and further discovered that Defendants had procured and/or caused to be procured a background 

8 report regarding hirn without a require disclosure form or, in the alternative, based on a non-

 

9 complaint disclosure form. 

10 16. Plaintiff alleges that in connection with Defendants' evaluation of them for 

li employment Amazon Flex delivery drivers, Plaintiff and similarly situated Amazon Flex delivery 

12 drivers completed Defendants' standard application materials, which, on information and belief, 

13 were used regularly by Defendants to evaluate Plaintiff and similarly situated Amazon Flex 

14 delivery drivers for employment during the relevant time period and included procuring and/or 

15 causing to be procured background reports on Plaintiff and similarly situated Amazon FIex 

16 I delivery drivers. 

17 17. When Plaintiff received of a copy of his background report and documents related 

18 I thereto from Defendants' third-party background report provider, Accurate Background, Inc., no 

19 disclosure form signed by Plaintiff was included. Plaintiff is fiirther informed, believe, and thereon 

20 alleges that Defendants failed to provide Plaintiff and similarly situated Amazon Flex delivery 

21 drivers Amazon Flex delivery drivers with a document constituting a disclosure €orm or, in the 

22 alternative, failed to provide a legally-compliant document constituting a disclosure form that was 

I 
23 clear and conspicuous, written, and stand-alone as required by 15 U.S.C. §§ 1681b(b)(2)(A), Cal. 

24 Civ. Code §§ 1786.16(a)(2), and Cal Civ. Code §§ 1785.20.5(a), prior to procuring or causing to 

25 be procured background reports on Plaintiff and similarly situated prospective, current, and former 

26 employees of Defendants. 

27 18. In the alternative, if Defendants did provide a disclosure to Plaintiff and similarly 

28 situated Amazon Flex delivery drivers , then Plaintiff alleges that Defendants failed to provide 
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I them with a legally compliant disclosure form based on the following: 

2 (a) The disclosure form did not consist solely of the disclosure because it 

3 contained extraneous information and/or was unclear and not reasonably understandable to 

4 Plaintiff and sirnilarly situated drivers Amazon Flex delivery drivers because it, among other 

5 things, for example: 

6 i. Provided that the scope of disclosure and authorization was all- 

7 encompassing, allowing Defendants to obtain consumer reports and investigative consumer 

8 reports now and throughout the course of employment to the extent permitted by law, unless 

9 otherwise revoked by providing written notification to Defendants. 

10 A The disclosure did not explain how the disclosure and 

li authorization was all-encompassing or how an all-encompassing nature would affect Plaintiffs 

12 and similarly situated Amazon Flex delivery drivers' rights. 

13 B The section of the provision regarding "to the extent 

14 permitted by law" suggests that there may be some limits on the all-encompassing nature of the 

15 authorization, but the disclosure does not identify what those limits are or may be. 

16 C The provision does not explain what the contents of any 

17 notice to the Defendants should contain to effectively revoke consent, if so desired. 

18 H. Provided that Minnesota and Oklahoma applicants or employees 

19 only could check an appropriate box below if they wanted to receive a copy of their consumer 

20 reports fi-ee of charge. 

21 A This provision may have confused Plaintiff and similarly 

22 situated Amazon Flex delivery drivers and caused them to believe that only those who have 

23 applied or are working in either Minnesota or Oklahoma are entitled to copies of their consumer 

24 reports free of charge. 

25 iii. Provided that New York applicants have the right to inspect and 

26 receive a copy of any investigative consumer report requested by Defendants by contacting the 

27 consumer reporting agency or contacting Defendants to request the name, address, and telephone 

28 number of  the nearest unit of the consumer reporting agency designated to handle inquiries, which 

PLAINTIFF NAREK iNfIKE MELIKYAN'S COiWLAINT 
7 

Case 2:21-cv-08715   Document 1-1   Filed 11/04/21   Page 9 of 43   Page ID #:16



1 the Defendants shall provide within 5 days. The disclosure further provided that, upon requires, 

2 New York applicants will be informed whether or not a consumer report was requested by 

3 Defendants, and if such report was requested, informed of the name and address of the consumer 

4 reporting agency that furnished the report. 

5 A This provision may have confused Plaintiff and similarly 

6 situated drivers Amazon Flex delivery drivers to believe that only those who applied or are ' 

7 working in New York the right to inspect and receive a copy of any investigative consumer report 

8 requested by Company by contacting the consumer reporting agency or contacting the Company I 

9 to request the name, address and telephone number of the nearest unit of the consumer reporting , 

10 agency designated to handle inquiries, which the Company shall provide within 5 days or that only I 

il those who applied or are employed in New York will be informed whether or not a consumer 

12 report was requested by Company, and if such report was requested, informed of the name and 

13 address of the consumer reporting agency that furnished the report. 

14 ii. Provided that Oregon applicants may obtain information describing 

15 your rights under federal and Oregon law regarding consumer identity theft protection, the storage 

16 and disposal of your credit information, and remedies available should you suspect or find that the 

17 Company has not maintained secured records is available to you upon request. 

18 A This provision may have confused Plaintiff and similarly 

19 situated drivers Amazon Flex delivery drivers to believe that only those who applied or are 

20 working in Oregon are entitled to information describing their rights regarding consumer identity 

21 theft protection, the storage and disposal of your credit information, and remedies available 

22 should Plaintif£ and similarly situated .Amazon Flex delivery drivers suspect or Find that the 

23 Company has not maintained secured records available upon request. 

24 iii. Provided that Washington State applicants have the right to request 

25 from the consurner reporting agency a written summary of your rights and remedies under the 

26 Washington Fair Credit Reporting Act 

27 A This provision may have confused Plaintiff and„similarly 

28 situated Amazon Flex delivery drivers to believe that only those who applied or are working in 
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1 Washington have the right to reqtiest from the consumer reporting agency a written summary of 

2 your rights and remedies. 

3 (b) Plaintiff is further alleges that if a disclosure form provided by Defendants 

4 and Plaintiff and similarly situated Amazon Flex delivery drivers, said disclosure form violated 

5 Cal. Civ. Code section 1786.16(a)(2) because it contained an "evergreen consent" provision in 

6 defiance of the requirement that Defendants provide Plaintiff and similarly situated Amazon Flex II 

7 delivery drivers with written disclosures and obtain written authorization each time an I 

8 investigative consttmer report is sought. Plaintiff alleges that not only did disclosure form present 

9 information in a manner that was confusing to a reasonable reader, but was directly contravened ! 

10 by the requirernent set forth in Cal. Civ. Code § 1786.16(a)(2) that an investigative consumer 

11 report be procured only for "a permissible purpose." This cannot be the case if Defendants' 

12 compelled Plaintiff and similarly situated drivers Amazon Flex delivery drivers to sign off on an 

13 open-ended, perpetual authorization (or "evergreen consent"), in violation of Cal. Civ. Code I 

14 section 1786.16(a)(2) (requiring that a written disclosure be provided "at any time" an 

15 investigative consumer report is sought, subject to narrow exceptions), which allows Defendants 

16 to obtain a background report without providing the requisite disclosure(s) or obtaining the 

I7 necessary authorization. 

18 (c) Plaintiff further alleges that if a disclosure form provided by Defendants 

19 and Plaintiff and similarly situated Amazon Flex delivery drivers, said disclosure form violated 

20 Civil Code section 1785.20.5(a) because it: 

21 i. failed to identify the specific basis under Labor Code §1024.5(a) for 

22 use of the report; 

23 ii. failed to inform Plaintiff and similarly situated drivers Amazon Flex 

24 delivery drivers of the source of the report; and 

25 iii. did not contain a check box that Plaintiff and similarly situated 

26 Ainazon Flex delivery drivers could check off to receive a copy of their credit report. 

27 19. Additionally, Plaintiff alleges, Defendants maintain a policy, practice, and/or 

28 procedure whereby, within three days of requesting investigative consumer reports regarding 
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1 Plaintiff and similarly situated Amazon Flex delivery drivers, they fail to: 

2 (a) inform Plaintiff and similarly situated drivers and Amazon Flex delivery I 

3 drivers, in writing, of their right to request additional disclostires as provided in 15 U.S.C. 

4 §1681d(b); and 

5 (b) provide a written summary of the rights of Plaintiff and similarly situated 

6 Amazon Flex delivery drivers pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §§ 1681g(c). 

7 20. Therefore, Plainti:ff alleges, Defendants violated Section 1681d(a)(1) of the FCRA 

8 by failing to provide to Piaintiff and similarly situated Amazon Flex delivery drivers within three 

9• days of requesting investigative consumer reports regarding thern a disclosure, in writing, 

lo informing them of their right to request the additional disclosures provided for under Section 

11 1681d(b) ofthe FCRA. 

12 21. Plaintiff further alleges that Defendants further violated of Section 1681d(a)(1) of 

13 the FCRA. by failing to provide to Plaintiff and similarly situated Amazon Flex delivery drivers 

14 within three days of requesting investigative consumer reports a written disclosure, including a 

15 written summary of their rights pursuant to Section 1681g(c) of the FCRA. 

16 22. By failing to provide Plaintiff and similarly situated Amazon Flex delivery drivers 

17 with a document that constituted a written disclosure form, Plaintiff alleges Defendants violated 

18 the FCRA as follows: 

19 (a) Defendants failed to provide Plaintiff and similarly situated Amazon Flex 

20 delivery drivers a document that constituted an FCRA. disclosure in a separate document that 

21 consisted solely of the disclosure before rtinning background reports on them; 

22 (b) Defendants failed, within three days of requesting investigative consumer 

23 reports regarding Plaintiff and similarly situated prospective, current, and former drivers and 

24 Amazon Flex delivery drivers, to infonn them, in writing, of their right to request additional 

25 disclosures as provided in 15 U.S.C. §1681d(b); 

26 (c) Defendants failed, within three days of requesting investigative consumer 

27 reports regarding Plaintiff and similarly situated Amazon Flex delivery drivers, to provide them 

28 with a written sumrnary of the rights of Plaintiff and similarly situated prospective, current, and 
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EJ former drivers and Amazon Flex delivery drivers pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §§1681g(c); 

2 (d) Defendants failed, within three days of requesting investigative consumer 

3 reports regarding Plaintiff and similarly situated Amazon Flex delivery drivers, to provide them a 

4 disclosure, in writing, informing them of their right to request the additional disclosures provided 

5 for under Section 1681d(b) ofthe FCRA.; and 

6 (e) Defendants failed, within three days of requesting investigative constimer 

7 reports regarding Plaintiff and similarly situated Amazon Flex delivery drivers, to provide them a 

8 writ-ten disclosure, including a written summary of their rights pursuant to Section 1681 g(c) of the 

9 f FCRA. 

10 23. By failing to provide Plaintiff and similarly situated Amazon Flex delivery drivers 

11 with a document that constituted a written disclosure form, Plaintiff alleges Defendants violated 

12 I the 1CRAA as follows; 

13 (a) Defendants failed to provide Plaintiff and similarly situated prospective, 

14 current, and former drivers and Amazon Flex delivery drivers a clear and conspicuous disclosure 

15 in writing, in a document consisting solely of the disclosure, at any time before a background 

16 I report was procured or caused to be procured on them that: 

17 i. an investigative report may be obtained; 

18 ii. identified the permissible purpose of the report; 

19 iii.- the disclosure may have included .information on PlaintifPs and 

20 similarly situated prospective, current, and former empioyees' character, general reputation, 

21 personal characteristics, and mode of living; 

22 iv. identified the name, address, and telephone number of the 

23 investigative consumer reporting agency conducting the investigation; 

24 V. notifed Plaintiff and similarly situated Amazon Flex delivery 

25 drivers, in writing, of the nature and scope of the investigation requested, including a summary of 

26 the provisions of Cal. Civ. Code § 1786.22; and 

27 vi. notified Plaintiff and similarly situated Amazon Flex delivery 

28 drivers of the lnternet Web site address of the investigative consumer reporting agency or, if the 
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1 agency had no Internet Web site address, the telephone number of the agency, where the consumer 

2 may find information about the investigative reporting agency's privacy practices, including 

3 whether Plaintiff s and similarly situated prospective, current, and former drivers' and Amazon 

4 Flex delivery drivers' personal information will be sent outside the United States or its territories. 

5 (b) Defendants failed to obtain written authorization of Plaintiff and similarly 

6 situated Amazon Flex delivery drivers for the procurement of the report; 

7 ! (e) Defendants failed to certify to the investigative consumer reporting agency 

8 that they had made the applicable disclosures to PIaintiff and similarly situated Amazon Flex 

9 delivery drivers as required; 
I 

10 (d) Defendants failed to agree to provide copies of the reports to Plaintiff 

11 similarly situated Amazon Flex delivery drivers; 

12 (e) Defendants failed to provide Plaintiff and similarly situated Amazon Flex 

13 I delivery drivers a means by which they could indicate on a written form, by means of a box to 

14 check, that they wished to received a copy of any report that is prepared; and 

15 (f) Defendants further failed to send Plaintiff and similarly situated Amazon 

16 Flex delivery drivers a copy within three business days of the day the reports were provided to 

17 Defendants if Plaintiff and similarly situated prospect►ve, current, and former drivers and Amazon 

18 Flex delivery drivers which to received a copy of the report. 

19 24. By failing to provide Plaintiff and similarly situated Amazon Flex delivery drivers 

20 with a document that constituted a written disclosure form, Plaintiff alleges Defendants violated 

21 I the CCRAA as follows: 

22 (a) Defendants failed to identify the specific basis under Labor Code 

23 I§] 024.5(a) for use of the report; 

24 (b) Defendants failed to inform Plaintiff and similarly situated prospective, 

25 Amazon Flex delivery drivers of Defendants of the source of the report; and 

26 (c) Defendants failed to include a check box that Plaintiff and similarly situated 

27 Amazon Flex delivery drivers of Defendants could check off to receive a copy of their credit 

28 I report. 
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25. In the alternative, Plaintiff alleges, if Defendants did provide Plaintiff and similarly 

situated Amazon Flex delivery drivers with a document that constituted a written disclosure form, 

the written disclosure form provided was not compliant with the FCRA based on the following: 

(a) It was not a stand-alone document; 

(b) It was not a document that consisted solely of the disclosure; and 

(e) It included extraneous information. 

26. In the alternative, Plaintiff alleges, if Defendants did provide Plaintiff and similariy 

situated Amazon Flex delivery drivers with a document that constituted a written disclosure form, 

the written disclosure form provided was not compliant with the ICRAA based on the following: 

(a) It was not provided at any time a background report was sought for 

employment purposes; 

(b) It was not clear and conspicuous; 

(c) It was not a stand-alone document; 

(d) It was not a document that consisted solely of the disclosure; 

(e) It included extraneous information; 

(f) It failed to state that an investigate consumer report may be obtained; 

(g) It failed to identify the permissible purpose of the report; 

(h) It failed to provide that the disclosure may include information regarding 

; Plaintiff's and similarly situated Amazon Flex delivery drivers' character, general reputation, 

personal characteristics, and mode of living; 

(i) It failed to identify the name, address, and telephone number of the 

investigative consumer reporting agency conducting the investigation; 

(j) It failed to notify Plaintiff and similarly situated Amazon Flex delivery 

drivers, in writing, of the nature and scope of the investigation requested, including a summary of 

the provision of Cal. Civ. Code §1786.22; and 

(k) It failed to notify Plaintiff and similarly situated Amazon Flex delivery 

I drivers of the internet web site address of the investigative consumer reporting agency conducting 

the investigation. 
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1 27. In the alternative, Plaintiff alleges, if Defendants did provide Plaintiff and similarly 

2 situated Amazon Flex delivery drivers with a document that constituted a written disclosure form, 

3 the written disclosure form provided was not compliant with the CCRAA based on the following: 

4 (a) It failed to identify the specific basis under Labor Code §1024.5(a) for use 

5 of the report; 

6 (b) It failed to identify the source of the report; and 

7 (e) It failed to include a check box that and similarly situated prospective, 

8 current, and former employees could check off to receive a copy of their credit report. 

9 CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS 

10 28. Plaintiff brings this action on their own behalf and on behalf of all other members 

11 of the general public similarly situated, and, thus, seeks class certification pursuant to Code' of 

12 Civil Procedure section 382 because there is a well-defined community of interest among many 

13 persons who comprise the classes defined below: 

14 29. Class Definitions: The classes are defined as follows: 

15 (a) FCRA Class: All current, former, and prospective Amazon Flex delivery 

16 drivers of Defendants in the United States at any time during the period for which a background 

17 

I
 check was performed beginning five (5) years prior to the filing of this action and ending on the 

18 date that final judgment is entered in this action. 

19 I (b) ICR.AA Class: All current, forrner, and prospective Amazon Flex delivery 

20 drivers of Defendants in California at any time during the period for which a background check 

21 was performed beginning five (5) years prior to the fiiing of this action and ending on the date that 

22 ~ final judgment is entered in this action. 

23 (c) CCRAA. Class: All current, former, and prospective Amazon Flex delivery 

24 drivers of Defendants in California at any time during the period for which a background check 

25 was performed beginning seven (7) years prior to the ftling of this action and ending on the date 

26 that final judgment is entered in this action 

27 30. Revisions to Proposed Class Definitions: Plaintiff reserves the right to amend or 

28 modify the class definitions by further division into subclasses and/or by limitation to particular 
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1 issues and/or to exclude imprope.r constituents as may subsequently prove necessary. 

2 31. Numerosity: The class members are so numerous that the individual joinder of each 

3 individual class member is impractical. While Plaintiff does not currently know the exact number 

4 of class members, Plaintiff is informed and believes that the actual number exceeds the minirnum 

5 required for numerosity under the law. 

6 32. Commonality and Predominance: Common questions of law and fact exist as to all I 

7 class members and predominate over any questions which affect only individual class members. ~ 

8 These questions include, but are not limited to: 

9 (a) Whether it is Defendants' standard procedure to provide a stand-alone 

10 written disclosure that is clear and conspicuous to class members before obtaining a consumer 

11 ; report, investigative consumer report, and/or credit report in compliance with the statutory 

12 I mandates; 

13 (b) Whether it is Defendants' standard procedure to provide class members 

14 I reasonable opportunity to obtain copies of their consumer reports, investigative consumer reports, 

15 and/or credit reports in compliance with the statutory mandates; 

16 (c) Whether it is Defendants' standard procedure to provide class members with 

17 copies of their consumer report, investigative consumer report, and/or credit report in a timely 

18 matter in compliance with the statutory mandates; 

19 (d) Whether it is Defendants' standard procedure to class members with a copy 

20 ofthe report, or summary of their rights under the FCRA; 

21 (e) Whether it is Defendants' standard procedure to identify a specific basis for 

22 I requesting a consumer credit report in compliance with the statutory mandates; 

23 (f) Whether Defendants' failures to comply with the FCRA, ICRAA, or 

24 CCRAA were willful or grossly negligent; 

25 (g) Whether Defendants' conduct described herein constitutes a violation of the 

26 I UCL; and 

27 (h) The appropriate amount of statutory damages, attorneys' fees, and costs 

28 resulting from Defendants' violations of federal and California law. 
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1 33, Typicality: Plaintiff's claims are typical of the other class members' .claims. 

2 Plaintiff is informed and believes and thereon alleges that Defendants have a policy, practice, 

3 and/or procedures, or a lack of a policy, practice, and/or procedure, which resulted in Defendants 

4 failing to comply with the FCRA, ICRAA, and/or CCRAA as alleged herein. 

5 34. Adequaoy of Class Representative: Plaintiff is adequate class representative in that 

6 they have no interest that is adverse to, or otherwise in conflict with, the interests of absent class 

7 members. Plaintiff is dedicated to vigorously prosecuting this action on behalf of class members. 

8 Plaintiff will fairly and adequately represent and protect the interests of class members. 

9 35. Adequacy of Class Counsel: Plaintiff's counsel are adequate class counsel in that 

10 they have no known conflicts of interest with Plaintiff or absent class members, are experienced in 

11 class action litigation and are dedicated to vigorously prosecuting this action on behalf of Plaintiff 

12 and absent class members. 

13 36. Superiority: A class action is vastly superior to other available means for fair and 

14 efficient adjudication of class members' claims and would be beneficial to the parties and the 

15 Court. Class action treatment will allow a number of similarly situated persons to simultaneously 

16 and efficiently prosecute their common claims in a single forum without the unnecessary 

17 duplication of effort and expense that numerous individual actions would entail. In addition, the 

18 monetary amounts due to many individuaI class members are likely to be relatively small and 

19 would thus make it difficult, if not impossible, for individual class members to both seek and 

20 obtain relief. Moreover, a class action will serve an important public interest by permitting class 

21 members to effectively pursue the recovery of monies owed to them. Further, a class action will 

22 prevent the potential for inconsistent or contradictory judgments inherent in individual litigation. 

23 FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 

24 FAILURE TO PROVIDE DISCLOSURE/PROPER DISCLOSURE IN VIOLATION OF 

25 15 U.S.C. §§ 1681b(b)(2)(A) (FAIR CREDIT REPORTING ACT) 

26 (Against All Defendants and DOE Defendants by Plaintiff and the FCRA Class) 

27 37. Plaintiff incorporates all paragraphs above as though fully set forth herein. 

28 38. Defendants are "persons" as defined by section 1681a(b) of the FCRA. 
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1 39. Plaintiff and FCRA Class Members are consumers within the meaning section I 

2 1681a(c) ofthe FCRA, because they are "individuals." 

3 40. Defendants violated section 1681b(b)(2)(A) of the FCRA by failing to provide 

4 Plaintiff and FCRA Class Members with a clear and conspicuous written disclosure, before aI 

5 report is procured or caused to be procured, that a consumer report may be obtained for 

6 employment purposes, in a document that consists solely of the disclosure. 

7 41. Based upon the facts likely to have evidentiary support after a reasonable 

8 opportunity for further investigation and discovery, Plaintiff alleges Defendants have a policy, , 

9 practice, and/or procedure of failing to provide any disclosure whatsoever or, in the alternative, 

lo failing to provide an adequate written disclosure to Plaintiff and FCRA Class Members before 

11 procuring consumer reports or causing consumer reports to be procured. Pursuant to that policy, 

12 practice, and/or procedure, Defendants procured consumer reports or caused consumer reports to 

13 be procured for Plaintiff and FCRA Class Members without first providing a written disclosure or, 

14 in the alternative, a written disclosure in compliance with section 1681b(b)(2)(A) of the FCRA. 

15 j 42. Defendants' conduct in violation of section 1681 b(b)(2)(A) of the FCRA was and is 

16 willful. Defendants acted in deliberate or reckless disregard of their obligations and the riglits of 

17 Plaintiff and FCRA Class Members. Defendants' willful conduct is reflected by, among other 

18 I things, the following: 

19 I (a) Defendants are large corporations with access to legal advice through their 

20 I own general counsel's office and outside counsel; 

21 (b) The third-party background check provider in this case, Accurate 

22 , Backgrounds, Inc., is an established background check provider; and 

23 (c) The plain language of the statute unambiguously indicates a written 

24 disclosure is required and that including extraneous and unclear information in a disclosure 

25 violates disclosure requirements. 

26 43. Accordingly, Defendants willfully violated and continue to violate the FCRA 

27 including, but not limited to section 1681b(b)(2)(A). Defendants' willful conduct is reflected by, 

28 among other things, the facts set forth above. 
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44. As a result of Defendants' illegal procurement of consumer reports by way of their 

failure to provide a disclosure or, in that alternative, utilizing an inadequate disclosure, as set forth 

above, Plaintiff and FCRA Class Mernbers have been injured including, but not limited to, having 

their privacy and statutory rights invaded in violation of the FCRA. 

45. Plaintiff, on behalf of himself and the FCRA Class Members, seek all available 

rernedies pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1681n including statutory damages and/or actual damages, 

punitive damages, injunctive and equitable relief, and attorneys' fees and costs. 

46. ln the alternative to Plaintiff's allegation that these violations were willful, Plaintiff 

alleges that the violations were negligent and seeks the appropriate remedy, if any, under 15 U.S.C. 

§ 1681o. 

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION 

FAILURE TO PROVIDE PROPER SUMMARY OF RIGHTS IN VIOLATION OF 

15 U.S.C. §§ 1681d(a)(1) AND 1681g(c) 

(FAIR CREDIT REPORTING ACT) 

(Against All Defendants and DOE Defendants by Plaintiff and the FCRA Class) 

47. Plaintiff incorporates all paragraphs above as though fu11y set forth herein. 

48. 15 U.S.C. § 1681d(a) states: 

(a) Disclosure of fact of preparatiori - A person may not procure or cause to be 
prepared an investigative consumer report on any consumer unless — 
(1) it is clearly and accurately disclosed to the consumer that an 

investigative consumer report including information as to his 
character, general reputation, personal characteristics, and mode of 
living, which are applicable, may be made, and such disclosure 
(A) is made in a writing mailed, or otherwise delivered, to the 

consumer, not later than three days after the date on which 
the report was first requested, and 

(B) includes a statement informing the consumer of his right to 
request the additional disclosures provided for under 
subsection (b) of this section and the written summaly of the 
rights of the consumer prepared pursuant to section 1681g(c) 
of this title.... 

49. 15 U.S.C. § 1681d(b) states: 
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(b) Disclosure on request of nature and scope of investigation 
Any person who procures or causes to be prepared an investigative 

consumer report on any consumer shall, upon written request made by the 

consumer within a reasonable period of time after the receipt by him of the 

disclosure required by subsection (a)(1), make a complete and accurate 

disclosure of the nature and scope of the investigation reqtiested. This 

disclosure shall be made in a writing mailed, or after the date on which the 

request for such disclosure was received from the consumer or such report 

was first requested, whichever is the Iater. 

50. 15 U.S.C. § 1681g(c) further provides for summary of rights to obtain and dispute 

information in consumer reports and to obtain credit scores: 

(c) Summary of rights to obtain and dispute information in consumer reports.and to 

obtain credit scores 
(1) Commission summary ofrights required 

(A) In general 
The Commission shall prepare a model summary of the rights of 

consumers under this subchapter. 
(B) Content of summary 

The summary of rights prepared under subparagraph (A) shall 

include a description of- 
(i) the right of a consumer to obtain a copy of a consumer report 

under subsection (a) from each consumer reporting agency; 

(ii) the frequency and circumstances under which a consumer is 

entitled to receive a consumer report without charge under 

section 1681 i of this title; 
(iii) the right of a consumer to dispute information in the file of 

the consumer under section 1681 i of this title; 

(iv) the right of a consumer to obtain a credit score from a 

consumer reporting agency, and a description of how to 

obtain a credit score; 
(v) the method by which a consumer can contact, and obtain a 

consumer report from, a consumer reporting agency without 

charge, as provided in the regulations of the Bureau 

prescribed under section 211(c) of the Fair and Accurate 

Credit Transactions Act ofZ003; and 
(vi) the method by which a consumer can contact, and obtain a 

consumer report from, a eonsumer reporting agency 
described in section 1681 a(w) of this title, as provided in the 

regulations of the Bureau prescribed under section 
1681j(a)(1)(C) of this title. 

51. As alleged herein, Defendants failed to comply with 15 U.S.C. § 1681d(a) because 

Defendants failed provide any disclosure or, in the alternative, failed to clearly and accurately 
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1 disclose to Plaintiff and FCRA Class Members that an investigative consumer report including' 

2 information as to their character, general reputation, personal characteristics, and mode of living 

3 may be made. 

4 52. Defendants further failed to comply with 15 U.S.C. § 1681d(a) and 15 U.S.C. § 

5 1681d(b) because Defendants failed to provide Plaintiff and FCRA Class members a written 

6 disclosure, within three days of requesting an investigative consumer report regarding them, 

7 including a statement informing Plaintiff and FCRA Class Members of their right to request the 

8 additional disclosures provided for under Section 1681 d(b) of the FCRA. 

9 53. In further violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1681d(a), because Defendants failed to provide 

10 Plaintiff and FCRA Class members a written disclosure, within three days of requesting an 

11 investigative consumer report regarding them, including a written summary of the rights of 

12 Plaintiff and FCRA Class members prepared pursuant to Section 1681 g(c) of the FCRA. 

13 54. Additionally, Defendants did not comply with Section 1681g(c)(B)(1) because they 

14 failed to provide Plaintiff and FCRA Class Members a summary of rights stating the right of a 

15 consumer to obtain a copy of a constumer report from each consumer reporting agency. 

16 55. Defendants did not comply with Section 1681g(c)(B)(2) because they failed to 

17 provide Plaintiff and FCRA Class Members a summary of rights stating the frequency and 

18 circumstances under which a consumer is entitled to receive a consumer report without charge. 

19 56. Defendants did not comply with Section 1681 g(c)(B)(3) because they failed to 

20 provide Plaintiff and FCRA Class Members a summary of rights stating the right of a consumer to 

21 dispute information in the file of the consumer. 

22 57. Defendants did not comply with Section 1681g(c)(B)(4) because they failed to 

23 provide Plaintiff and FCR.A Class Members a summary of rights stating the right of a consumer to 

24 obtain a credit score from a consumer reporting agency and a description of how to obtain a credit 

25 score. 

26 58. Defendants did not comply with Section 1681g(c)(B)(5) because they failed to 

27 provide Plaintiff and FCRA Class Members a summary of rights stating the method by which a 

28 consumer can contact, and obtain a consumer report from, a consumer reporting agency without 
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charge. 

59. Defendants did not compiy with Section 1681 g(c)(B)(6) because they failed to 

provide Plaintiff and FCRA Class Members a summary of rights stating the method by which a 

consumer can contact, and obtain a consumer report from, a consumer reporting agency described 

in Section 1681a(w) of this title, as provided in the regulations of the Bureau prescribed under 

section 1681j(a)(1)(C) of this title. 

60. Defendants conduct in violation of Sections 1681d(a)-(b) and 1681g(c) of the 

FCRA was and is willful. Defendants acted in deliberate or reckless disregard of their obligations 

and the rights of Plaintiff and FCRA Class Members. Defendants' willful conduct is reflected by, 

among other things, the following facts; 

(a) Defendants are large corporations with access to legal advice through their 

own general counsel's office and outside counsel; 

(b) The third-party background check provider in this case, Accurate 

I Backgrounds, lnc., is an established background check provider; and 

(c) The plain language of the statute unambiguotusly indicates that Defendants 

inay not procure or cause to be prepared an investigative consumer report on Plaintiff and/or 

FCRA Class Members unless it is clearly and accurately disclosed to them that an investigative 

consumer report including information as to their character, general reputation, personal 

characteristics, and mode of living is made in a writing mailed, or otherwise detivered, to the 

I consumer, not later than three days after the date on which the report was first requested, and 

includes a statement informing them of their right to request the additional disclosures. 

61. Defendants witlfully violated and continue to violate the FCRA including, but not 

limited to, Sections 1681d(a)-(b) and 1681g(c). Defendants' willful conduct is reflected by, among 

other things, the facts set forth above. 

62. By willfully failing to provide Plaintiff and FCRA Class Members with the above- 

described information informing them of their right to request additional disclosures under the 

FCRA and further failing to provide them with a written summary of their rights under the FRCA, 

Defendants deprived Plaintiff and Class Members of their legal right to this information. 
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1 63. Accordingly, Plaintiff, on behalf of himself and all FCRA Class members, seeks ~ 

2 remedies pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1681 n, including statutory damages, and attorneys' fees and 
I
 

3 costs for Defendants' violations of 15 U.S.C. §§ 1681d(a)-(b) and 1681g(c). 

4 THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION 

5 VIOLATION OF CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE §§ 1786, ET SEQ. 

6 (INVESTIGATIVE CONSUMER REPORTING AGENCIES ACT) 

7 (Against All Defendants and DOE Defendants by Plaintiff and the ICRAA Class) 

8 64. Plaintiff incorporates all paragraphs above as though fully set forth herein: 

9 65. Defendants are "persons" as defined by Cal. Civ, Code § 1786.2(a). 

10 66. Plaintiff and 1CRAA Class Members are "consumers" within the meaning Cal. Civ. 

11 Code § 1786.2(b), because they are natural individuals who have made application to a person for 

12 employment purposes. 

13 67. Section 1786.2(c) of the IC.RAA defines "investigative .consumer report" as "a 

14 consumer report in which information on a consumer's character, general reputation, personal 

15 characteristics, or mode of living is obtained through any means." Thus, a background check 

16 qualifies as an investigative consumer report under the ICRAA. 

17 68. Section 1786.2(d) of the ICRAA defines "investigative consumer reporting agency" 

18 as "any person who, for monetary fees or dues, engages in whole or in part in the practice of 

19 i collecting, assembling, evaluating, compiling, reporting, transmitting, transferring, or 

20 communicating information concerning consumers for the purposes of furnishing investigative 

21 consumer reports to third parties, but does not include any governmental agency whose records are 

22 ~ maintained primarily for traffic safety, law enforcement, or licensing purposes, or any licensed 

23 insurance agent, insurance broker, or solicitor, insurer, or life insurance agent." 

24 69. Section 1786.16(a)(2) of the ICRAA provides, in relevant part: 

25 lf, at any time, an investigative consumer report is sought for employment 

26 purposes ... the person seeking the investigative consumer report may procure the 

report, or cause the report to be made, only if all of the following apply: 
27 (A) The person procuring or causing the report to be made has a permissible 

28 
purpose, as defined in Section 1786.12. 
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(B) The person procuring or causing the report to be made provides a clear and 

conspicuous disclosure in writing to the consumer at any time before the 

report is procured or caused to be made in a document that consists solely 

of the disciosure, that: 

(i) An investigative consumer report may be obtained. 

(ii) The permissible purpose of the report is identified. 

(iii) The disclosure may include information on the consumer's 

 

character, general reputation, personal characteristics, and mode of 

 

Iiving. 
(iv) Identifies the name, address, and telephone number of the 

 

investigative consumer reporting agency conducting the 

 

investigation. 
(v) Notifies the consumer in writing of the nature and scope of the 

 

investigation reque.sted, including the provisions of Section 

 

1786.22. 
(vi) Notifies the constimer of the Internet Web site address of the 

 

investigative consumer reporting agency identified in clause (iv), 

 

or, if the agency has no Internet Web site address, the telephone 

 

number of the agency, where the consumer may find information 

 

about the investigative reporting agency's privacy practices, 

 

including whether the consumer's personal information will be sent 

 

outside the United States or its territories and information that 

 

complies with subdivision (d) of Section 1786.20. This clause shall 

 

become operative on January 1, 2012. 

(C) The consumer has authorized in writing the procurement of the report. 

70. On information and belief, and based upon the facts likely to have evidentiary 

support after a reasonable opportunity for further investigation and discovery, Defendants had and 

have a policy, practice, and/or procedure of procuring investigative consumer reports or causing 

investigative consumer reports to be procured for Plaintiff and ICRAA Class Members without 

providing them any disclosures whatsoever or, in the alternative, without providing them with 

stand-alone disclosures and obtaining authorization every time, as required by law. 

71. Pursuant to their policies, practices, and/or procedures, Defendants violated section 

1786.16(a)(2) of the ICRAA by faiiing to provide Plaintiff and ICRAA Class Members with any 

I
 written disclosure prior to procuring a background report or, in the alternative, by failing to 

provide Plaintiff and ICRAA Class Members a clear and conspicuous disclosure in writing that 

consisted solely of the disclosure, which adequately notified the consumer of the nature and scope 

of the investigation, and failing to obtain written authorization each time an investigative 
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1 consumer report is sought and procured with a permissible purpose as required by law. 

2 72. Defendants further violated section 1786.16(a)(2)(B)(iv) by failing to identify eacb 

3 investigative consumer reporting agency conducting the investigation. 

4 73. Defendants further violated section 1786.16(a)(2)(B)(vi) by failing to notify the 

5 Plaintiff and ICRAA Class Members of the Intemet Web site address of the investigative' 

6 consumer reporting agency identified in section 1786.16(a)(2)(B)(iv), or, if the agency has no 

7 Internet Web site address, the telephone number of the agency, where the consumer may find 

8 information about the investigative reporting agency's privacy practices, including whether the 

9 consumer's personal information will be sent outside the United States or its territories and 

lo information that complies with subdivision (d) of Section 1786.20. 

11 74. On information and belief and based upon the facts likely to have evidentiary 

12 support after a reasonable opportunity for further investigation and discovery, Defendants had and 

13 have a policy and practice of procuring investigative consumer reports or. cat►sing investigative 

14 consumer reports to be procured for Plaintiff and ICRAA Class Members without: 

15 (a) providing Plaintiff and ICRA.A Class Members with clear and conspicuous 

16 stand-alone disclosures each time a backgrotind report is requested, as required by law; 

17 (b) obtaining authorization every time a background report is requested; 

18 75. Pursuant to Defendants' policies, practices, and/or procedures, Defendants procured 

19 investigative consumer reports or caused investigative consumer reports to be procured for 

20 Plaintiff and 1CRA.A Class Members without complying with the requirements set forth in 

21 1786.16(a)(2) of the ICRAA. 

22 76. Accordingly, Defendants willfully violated and continue to violate the ICRAA 

23 including, but not limited to § 1786.16(a)(2), Defendants' willful or grossly negligent conduct is 

24 reflected by, among other things, the facts set forth above. 

25 77. As a result of Defendants' willful or grossly negligent failure to provide the 

26 required form as set forth above, Plaintiff and Class Members have been injured including, but not 

27 limited to, having their privacy and statutory rights invaded in violation of the ICRAA, among 

28 other injuries. 
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1 78. Plaintiff, on behalf of himself and the ICRAA Ciass Members, seeks all available I, 

2 remedies pursuant to § 1786.50 including actual damages, punitive damages, iiijunctive and 

3 equitable relief, and attorneys' fees and costs. 

4 FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

5 VIOLATION OF CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE §§ 1785, ET SEQ. 

6 (CONSUMER CREDIT REPORTING AGENCIES ACT) 

7 (Against All Defendants and DOE Defendants by Plaintiff and the CCRAA Class) 

8 79. Plaintiff incorporates all paragraphs above as though fully set forth herein. 

9 80. Defendants are "persons" as defined by Cal. Civ. Code § 1785.30. 

10 81. Plaintiff and CCRAA Class Members are consumers within the meaning of Civ. 

11 Code § 1785.3(b), because they are "natural individuals." 

12 82. Section 1785.3(c) of the CCRA.A defines "consumer credit report" as any written, 

13 oral, or other communication of any information by a consumer credit reporting agency bearing on 

14 a consumer's credit worthiness, credit standing, or credit capacity, which is used or is expected to 

15 be used, or collected in whole or in part, for the purpose of serving as a factor in establishing the 

16 consumer's eligibility for employment purposes. 

17 83. Section 1785.3(d) of the CCRAA defines "consumer credit reporting agency" as: 

18 "any person who, for monetary fees, dues, or on a cooperative nonprofit basis, regularly engages 

19 in whole or in part in the business of assembling or evaluating consumer credit information or 

20 other information on consumers for the purpose of furnishing consumer credit reports to third 

21 parties, but does.not include any governmental agency whose records are maintained primarily for 

22 traffic safety, law enforcement, or licensing purposes." 

23 84. Section 1785.3(f) of the CCRAA defines "employment purposes," when used in 

24 connection with a consumer credit report, as "a report used for the purpose of evaluating a 

25 consumer for employment, promotion, reassignment, or retention as an employee." 

26 85. Section 1785.20.5(a) of the CCRAA requires that prior to requesting a consumer 

27 credit report for employment purposes;  the user of the report shall provide written notice that: (a) 

28 identifies the specific basis under Section 1024.5(a) of the Labor Code for use of the report; (b) 
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1 informs the person of the source of the report; and (c) contains a box that the person may check off 

2 to receive a copy of the credit report. The employer must provide the report to the applicant or 

3 employee contemporaneously and at no charge. 

4 86. Defendants willfully violated section 1785.20.5(a) of the CCRAA as to Plaintiff 

5 and CCRAA Class Members, because they failed to provide written notice to Plaintiff and 

6 CCRAA Class Members that references a specific basis for the report under Cal. Lab. Code § 

7 1024. 

8 87. Defendants willfully violated section 1785.20.5(b) of the CCRAA as to Plaintiff 

9 and CCRAA Class Members, because they failed to provide written notice to Plaintiff and 

lo CCRAA Class Members that informed them of the source of the report. 

11 88. Defendants willfully violated section 1785.20.5(c) of the CCRAA as to Plaintiff 

12 and CCRAA Class Members, because they failed to provide written notice to Plaintiff and 

13 CCRAA Class Members that eontained a box that they may check off to receive a copy of the 

14 credit report. 

]5 89. On information and belief and based upon the facts likely to have evidentiary 

16 support after a reasonable opportunity for further investigation and discovery, Defendants had a 

17 policy, practice, and/or procedure of (a) failing to identify the specific basis under Labor Code 

18 §1024.5(a) for use of the report; (b) failing to identify the souree of the report; (c) failed to contain 

19 a box that the they may check off to receive a copy of the credit report. 

20 90. Pursuant to that policy, practiee, and/or procedure Defendants willfully violated 

21 section 1785.20.5(a) of the CCRAA as to Plaintiff and CCRAA Class Members. 

22 91. Accordingly, Defendants willfully violated and continue to violate the CCRAA 

23 including, but not limited to, section 1785.20.5(a) and have violated the privaey rights of Plaintiff 

24 and CCRAA Class Members. Defendants' willfiil conduct is reflected by, among other things, the 

25 facts set forth above. 

26 92. As a result of Defendants' willful conduct as set forth above, Plaintiff and CCRAA 

27 Class Members have been injured including, but not limited to, having their privacy and statutory 

28 rights invaded in violation of the CCRAA, among other injuries. 
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1 93. Plaintiff, on behalf of himself and the CCRAA Class Members, seeks all available 

2 remedies pursuant to Civ. Code § 1785.31 including statutory damages and/or actual darhages, 

3 punitive damages, injunctive and equitable relief, and attorneys' fees and costs. 

4 94. In the alternative to Plaintiff s allegation that these violations were willful, Plaintiff 

5 alleges that the violations were negligent and seeics the appropriate remedy, if any, under Civ. 

6 Code § 1785.31. 

7 FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

8 VIOLATION OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE § 17200, ET SEQ. 

9 (UNFAIR COMPETITION) 

10 (Against All Defendants and DOE Defendants by Plaintiff and the FCRA, ICRAA, and 

11 CCRAA Classes) 

12 95. Plaintiff incorporates all paragraphs above as though fully set forth herein. 

13 96. California's Unfair Competition Law ("UCL"), California Business & Professions 

14 Code § 17200 et seq., protects both consumers and competitors by promoting fair competition in 

15 commercial markets for goods and services. The UCL prohibits any unlawful, unfair, or fraudulent 

16 business act or practice. A business practice need only meet one of the three criteria to be 

17 considered unfair competition. An unlawftil business practice is anything that can properly be 

18 called a business practice and that at the same time is forbidden by law. 

19 97. As described above, Defendants have violated the "unlawful".prong of the UCL in 

20 that Defendants' conduct violated numerous provisions of the FCRA, ICR.AA, and CCRAA. 

21 98. Defendants have violated the "unfair" prong of the UCL in that they gained an 

22 unfair business advantage by failing to comply with state and federal mandates in conducting 

23 background checks and otherwise take the necessary steps to adhere to the FCRA, ICRA.A, and 

24 CCRAA. Further, any utility for Defendants' conduct is outweighed by the gravity of the 

25 consequences to Plaintiff and the FCRA, ICRAA, and CCRAA Class Members and because the 

26 conduct offends public policy. 

27 99. As a result of Defendants' conduct described herein and its willful violations of 

28 Bus. & Prof. Code § 17203, Plaintiff and the FCRA, ICRAA, and CCRIAA Class Members have 
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0 

1 suffered harm as described herein. 

2 100. Pursuant to Bus. & Prof. Code § 17203, Plaintiff seek an order enjoining 

3 Defendants from continuing to engage in the unfair and unlawful conduct described herein. 

4 Plaintiff seek an order (a) requiring Defendants to cease the unfair and unlawful practices 

5 described herein; and (b) awarding reasonable costs and attorneys' fees pursuant to California 

6 Code Civ. Proc. § 1021.5. 

7 PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

8 WHEREFORE, PLAINTIFF ON THEIR OWN BEHALF AND ON BEHALF OF 

9 THOSE SIMILARLY SITUATED, PRAY FOR RELIEF AND JUDGMENT AGAINST 

10 DEFENDANTS AS FOLLOWS: 

11 1. An order certifying the proposed Classes, designating Plaintiff as named I' 

12 representatives of the Classes, and designating the undersigned as Class Counsel; 

13 2. A Declaration that Defendants' practices violate the FCRA, 1CRAA, CCRAA, and 

14 UCL; 

15 3. An award of statutory, compensatory, special, general, and punitive damages 

16 according to proof against Defendants; 

17 4. An award of appropriate equitable relief, including but not limited to an injunction 

18 forbidding Defendants from engaging in further unlawful conduct in violation of the FCRA, 

19 ICRAA, CCRAA, and UCL; 

20 5. An award of pre judgment and post judgment interest, as provided by law; 

21 6. Leave to amend the Complaint to conform to the evidence produced at trial; 

22 7. An award of attorneys' fees and costs, as allowed by law, including an award of 

23 attorneys' fees and costs pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1681n, 15 U.S.C. 1681o, Cal. Civ. Code §§ 

24 1786.50 and 1785.31(a), Cal. Civ. Proc. Code § 1021.5; and 

25 8. Such other relief as the Court deems just and proper or as authorized by statute. 

26 

27 

28 
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Dated: September 15, 2021 Respectfully submitted, 
LAVI & EBRAHIMIAN, LLP 

By: ~ 
Joseph Lavi, Esq. 
Vincent C. Granberry, Esq, 
Anwar D. Burton, Esq. 
Kevin Joseph Farnan, Esq. 

Attorneys for Plaintiff NAREK MIKE MELIKYAN, ' 
on behalf of himself and others similarly situated 

DEMA.ND FOR JURY TRIAL 

PlaintiffNAREK MIKE MELIKYAN demand a trial by jury for himself, and on behalf of 

other members of the FCRA, ICRAA, and CCRAA Classes, on all claims so triable. 

Dated: September 15, 2021 Respectfully submitted, 
LAVI & EBRAHIMIAN, LLP 

B
 

Y: 
Joseph Lavi, Esq. 
Vincent C. Granberry, Esq. 
Anwar D. Burton, Esq. 
Kevin Joseph Farnan, Esq. 

Attorneys for Plaintiff NAREK MIKE MELIKYAN, 
on behalf of himself and others similarly situated 
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ill'fORNEY OR PARTY NATHOUT ATTORNEY (Name, State Barnumber, and address): 
Joseph Lavi;  Esq. (SBN 209776); Vincent C. Granbecry;  Esq. (SBtJ 276483); FOR COURT USE ONLY 

Kevin Joseph Farnan (3BN 327524); LAVI & EBRAHIMIAN, 11P 

 

8889 W. Olymplc Blvd.:,. Suite 200 

 

Beverly Hllls, CA 90211 

 

TELEPHONE No.: 310-432-0000 FAX NO. (OpUonaq:310-432-0001 ® L p1~~t 
~C)OR 

ATTORNEY FOR 1Name): NAREK MIKE MELIKYAN, and others similarly situated 
iot.

~~~L 

~upe 
u~ Y

 o~ of 
Calales 

ta 

Co of Lot3 Ang SUPERIOR COUR7 OF CALIFORNIA, COUN7Y OF LOS ANGELES 
sTREETADDRESS: 111 N. HiLL STREET 

 

MAit.tNG ADDREss: 111 N. HILL STREET ~+CP 15 Z0z 1 ~7G clTYrwoZlPcoDE: Los Angeles, CA 90012 

 

sRANCH NAME: Stanley Mosk Courthouse rd RGEWf, E}(QMU® OfficeflCierk ot Cautt 
;:~ ~.?' 

~ Kf~8~1?8 VtiYg88, 
k CASE NAME; 

fvl ELiKYAN V. AMAZON.COM, INC.; et ai, 

C1VI'L CASE COVER SHEET 
[]x Unlimited 0 Ljmited 

Compiex Case Designation 
[_] Counter 0 Joinder 

CASEN MBER: 

1 TC V 3 4 Q 67 
(Amount (Amount 
detnanded demanded is Fiied with. first appearance by defendant 

 

JUDGE: 

exceeds $25,000) $25,000) (Cal, Rules of Court rule 3.4b2) DEPT,: 

Items 1--6 below must be complefed (see instructfons on page 2). 

1. Check one box below for the case rype that best describes this case: 

 

Auto Tort Contract Provisionalty Complex Civil Litigation 

[~ Auto (22)• 0 13reach of contracUwarranty (06) (Cal. Rules of Court, rules 3.400-3.4Q3) 

Q Uninsured.motorist (46) 0 Rufe 3.740 collections (09) Antitrustlfrade regulation (03) 

Other PIlPD/WD (Parsonal Injury/Property ~ Other colleclions (09) ~ Construclion defecl (10) 

DamagelVllrongful Death) Tort ~ lnsurance coverage (18) ~ Mass tort (40) 

0 Asbestos (04) 
~ Other contract (37} ~ Securities litigation (28) 

Product liabilit 24 0 y(  ) Real Property 0 EnvironmentatlToxic tort (30) 

~ Medical malpractice (45) ~ Eminent domain/lnverse Q Insurance coverage cialms arising from the 

~ Other PI/PDNVD (23) condefnnatiorl (14) above Ilsted provisionally compfex case 
types (41) 

Non-PllPDIWD (Other) Tort Wrongful evicUon (33) Enforcement of Judgment 

~ Business tortlunfair business practice (07) 0 Other real property (?6) ~ Enforcement of judgment (20) 
~ Civil r"ights (08) Unlawful Detainer Mlscellaneous Civil Compiaint 

Defamatlon 

~ 

13 

() 

~ Commercial (31) 
~ RICO (27) 

Fraud 16) ~ ( 
[~ Resldenttal (32) 

0 Other complaint (not specilJed above) (42) 

Q Inlellectuaf property (19) Drugs (38) Misceilaneous Clvit Petition 
Q Professional negligence (25) Judicial Revtew 

~ Asset forfeiture (05) ~ Parinership and corporata governance (21) 
Q Other non-PIIPDNVD tort (35) 

Employment Pelition re: arbilration award (11) Other petition (not speclffed above) (43) 

~ Wrongful termination (36) Q Writ of mandate (02) 

 

~ Other emplcyment (15) Other judtcial review (39) 

 

2. This.  case 0 is = Is not complex urlder TUIe 3.400 of the California Rules of Court If the case is complex, rriark the 

factors requiring exceptional judiclal management: 
a, Large number of separately represented parties, 'd, x~ Large number of witriesses 

b. 0.Extensive motion practice r.aising difficult or novei e, Coordination with related actions pending in one ar more 
issues that will be time-consuming to resolve courts in other counties, states, or countries, or in a federal 

c. f—x- i Substantial amount of documentary evidence court 
f. 0 Substantial postjudgmentjudicial supervision 

3. Remedies sought (check all that apply): a. x~ monetary b. M nonmonetary; declaratory or injunctive relief c. punitive 

4. Number of causes of action (specify): Five (5) 

5. This case. x0 is = is not a class.action suit. 

6. . If there are any known related cases, file and serve a notice of related case. (You may use form CM-015:) 

Date: September 15, 2021 Kevin Joseph  

Kevin Joseph Farnan Farnan  

• Plaintiff niust file, thls cover sheet with the first pdper filed in the actid'n or proceeding (except small claims cases or cases filed 
under the Probate Code, Family Code, or Welfare and Institutlons Code). (Cal. Rules of Court, rule 3.220.) Failure to fiie may resuit 
in sanctions, 

• File.this cover sheet in addition to any cover sheet required by local court rule. 
r If this case Is complex under ruie 3.400 et seq. of the California Rules oPCourt, you must serve a copy of this cover sheet on ail 

other parties to the action or proceeding. 
• Uriless this is a collections case under rule 3.740 or a complex case, this cover sheet will be used for statistical purposes only. 

PaOe 1 of 1 

FormAdopledfor.MandatoryUse CIVILCASECOVER'SHEET Cal:RulesofCoud,tryles2.30,3220,3.400a.403,3.74a, 
Judklal Councu of Caliromla CaL Slandards, of Judicial AclminfalraPon, sld. 3,10 

CM1110 iRev. July 1, 20071 ' vnwr.courls.Ca.gov 

Case 2:21-cv-08715   Document 1-1   Filed 11/04/21   Page 32 of 43   Page ID #:39



lNSTRtJCT10NS ON HOW TO COMPLETE THE COVER SHEET CM-010 

To Plairttiffs and Others Filing First Papers. If you are filing a flrst paper (for example, a complaint) in a civil case, you must 
complete and file, along with your flrst paper, the Clvil Case Cover Sheet contained on page 1. This information will be used to eompiie 
statistics about the types and numbers of c.ases filed. You must complete items 1 through 6 on the sheet. In item 1, you must check 
one box for the case type that best describes the case. If the case fits both a general and a more specific type of case listed In Item 1, 
check the more specific one. If the case has multiple causes of action, check the box that best indicates the primary cause of action. 
To assist you in completing the sheet, examples of the cases that belong under each case. type ln item 1 are provided below. A cover 
sheet must be filed only with, your initiai paper. Failure to fiie a cover sheet with fhe first paper fiied in a civil case may subject a party, 
its counsel, or both to sanctions under rules 2.30 and 3.220 bf the Ca[ifornia Rules df Court. 

 

To Parties in Rule 3,740 Collections Cases. A"collections case" under rule 3.740 Is de6ned as an action for recovery of money owed 

In a sum stated to be certain that ls not more than $25,000, exclusive of interest and attorney's fees, arising from• a, transaction in which 
property, services, or money was acqulred on credit. A coliections case does not inciude an action seeking the following: (1) tort 
damages, (2) punitive damages, (3) recovery of real properly, (4) recovery of personal property, or (5) a prejudgment writ of 
attachment. The identification of a case as a rule 3.740 collections case on this form means that it wiil be .exempt from the general 
time-for=service requirements and case management rules, unless a defendartt files a responsive pleading. A rule 3,740 coiiections 

case will be subject to the requlrements for service and obtaining a judgment fn rule 3.740. 

 

To Parties in Compiex Cases. in comp[ex cases only, parties must also use the Civi] Case Cover Sheet to designate whether the 

case is complex. If a plaintiff believes the case is complex under ru1e. 3.400 of the California Rules of Court, this must be indicated by 

completing the appropriate boxes In items 1 and 2, If a plaintiff designates a case as compiex, the cover sheet mpst be served with the 

complaint on all parties to the action. A defendant may file and serve no later than the time of its first appearance a joinder in the 
plaintif4s designation, a counter-destgnafion that the case is not complex, or, if the plaintift has made no deslgnation;  a designatlon tiiat 

th. e case is complex. CASE TYPES AND EXAMPLES 

 

A uto Tort. Contract

 

Provtstonally Complex Givil Litigation (Cal. 

Auto (22)--:Personai Injury/Property Breach of ConlractlWarranty (06) Rules of Court Rules 3.400-3.403) 

DamagelWrongful Death Breach of Rental/Lease AntitrusVfrade Regulation (03) 

Uninsured Motodst (46) (1f the Contract (not untawllll detainer Construction Defecl (10) 

case Involves an uninsured or wrongful evfctlon) Claims [nvolvPng Mass Tort (40) 

motorist clafm subJect to ContracU>,Nan-anly BreactrSeller Seburities Liligalion (28) 

arbltratlon, check thJs ltem Plainliff (not fraud or negligence) EnvironmeritalfToxic Torl (30) 
Instead ofAuto) Negiigent Breach of ContracU Insurance Coverage Claims 

Other PIlPDlWo*(Personal lnjuryl Warran ly (arisin9 from provisionalfy complex 

Praperty DamagelVllrongful Death) Other Breach of ConlractMlarranty case type listed above) (41) 

Tott Collectlons (e,g., money owed, open Enforcemerit of Judgment 

Asbestos (04) book accounls) (09) Enforcement of Jiidgment (20) 

Asbeslos Property Damage Collection Case—Seller Plaintiff Abstract of Judgment (Out of 

Asbestos Personal Injury/ Other Promissory Note/Colleclions County) 

UVrongful Death Case Confession of Judgment (non- 

Product Liability (not asbestos or Insurance Coverage (not provisionally domestic relations) 

toxidenvlronmentaf) (24) comp lex) (.18) 5isterSlate.Judgment 
Medical Malpractice (45) Auto Subrogation Administratfve AgencyAward 

Medical Malpractfce- Other Coverage (not unpald taxes) 

Physicians & Surgeons Other Contracl (37.} Petilion/Ceriification of Enlry of 

Other Professional Heallh Care Contractual Fraud Judgment on Unpaid Taxes 

Malprac(ice Other Contract Dispute Other Enforcement of Judgment 

Olher PI/PD/WD (23) Real Property 

Premises Liability (e.g., stip Em v li i l D inen omannerse 
Case 

Misceilaneous Civil Complaint 

and fa11) Condemnation (14) RICO (27) 

intentfonal Botlily Injury/PDIWD Wrongfui Evictlon (33) ' Other Complaint (not specitled 

(e.g„ assault, vandallsm) Other Rea1 Property (e.g., quiet title) (26) abovc) (42) 

Intentional Infiiclion of Writ of Possesslon of Real Property Declaratory Reilef Only 

Emotional, Distress Nlortgage Foreclosure Injunctive Relief Only (non- 

Negiigent Infliction of Quiet Title harassment) 

Emotlonal Distress Other Real Pfoperty (not eminent Mechanics Llen 

Other PUPDNVD domaJn, landlord/tenant, or Other Commercial. Complaint 

Non-PU foreclosure)PP/WD (Other) Tort Case (nort=forUnon-complex) 

8uslness TorUUnfair Bus[ness Un lawful Detainer Other Civii Complafnt 

Praetice (07) Commercial (31) (non-tortlnon-complex) 

Civil Rights (e.g.,.discrimination, Residential (32)

 

Miscetlaneous Civii Petition 
Dgs () {ifthe ca lvs illel 

false arrest) {not civil ru 38 se Invoe ga Parfnership and Corporate 

harassment) (08) d~ugs, checkthfs item; dtherwise, Governance (21) 

Defamation (e.g., slander, libel) reporf as Conrmerclal or Residentlal) Olher Petition (not specified 

(13) Judiclat Review above) (43) 

Fraud (16) Asset Forfeiture (05) Civil Harassment 

Intelleclual Property (19) Petltion Re; Arbitration Award (11) Workplade Violence 
o it Professlonal Negllgence (26) Wrf Mandate (02) ElderlDependent Aduif 

t.egal Matpractice Writ—Adminislrative Mandamus Abuse 
Other. Prbfesslonal Matpractice Wri.t—Mandamus on Limlted Coud Election Contest 

(not medlcal orlegalJ . Case Matter Petition for Name Change 

Other Non-PUPDlWD Tort (35) Wril—Other Limited Court Case Pelition for Relief From Lale 

Employment Review 

Wrongful Terminatlon (36) Other Judicial Review (39) 
C[aim 

Other Civil Petition 

Other Empioyment (15) Review of Health Officer Order 

 

Notice of Appeal—Labor 

 

Commissloner Apaeals 
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sHoer7iTLe; MELIKYAN V. AMAZON.COM, INC,; et al. cnseNu lEx 

1.!~jCuz~~~1A7 

CIVIL CASE COVER SHEET ADDENDUM AND `~ FAX 
STATEMENT OF LOCATPON 

(CERTIFICATE OF GROUNDS FOR ASSIGNMENT TO COURTHOUSE LOCATION) 

This form is required pursuant ta Local Rule 2.3 tn atl newcivil case filings in the Los Angeles Superior Court. 

Step '{ : After completing the Civil Case Cover Sheet (judicial Council fotm CM-010), find the exact .case.type in 
Column A that corresponds to the case type indicated in the Civil Case Cover Sheet. 

Step 2: in Column B, check the box forthe type of action that best describes the nature bf the case. 

Step 3: In Column C, circle the numberwhich explains the reason for the court fiiing location you have 
chosen. 

Applicable Reasons for Choosing Court Filing Location (Column C) 

1.Class actions must be flled in the Stanley Mosk Courlhouse, Central District, 

2.Permissive Illing In cenlral dtstrtct. 

3.Locatlorl where cause of action ardse• 

4. Mandatory, personal injury filing in North DistricL 

5.Locatlon where performance required or defendant resides. 

S. Location of property or permanentiy garaged vehicle.  

7. Location where petiUoner resides. 

B. Location wherein defendani/respondentfunctions wholly. 

9.Location where one or more of tlie partles reside. 

10.Location of Labor Commissioner OfTlce. 

Yl: Mandatory filinglocation (Hub Cases — unlawful detalner, limited 
non-collection, limited collectien, or personal Injury). 

:A;;: - :.: .. . . . . .. .. : . . 
: _ ...... ..: :.... . ..., .. . ... • . . : :.. . : '• ~.:; :~ ... . . ... . .. . :. ~ ... .B:~..  ...... ... . . ~_ 

. ::. C1vII Case CoverStieet , t .. .:. . . . 
Nor 

:;;":;., . ° : . : _, : . .: ,•.:. :'.' '. < : 1ype;of Actlbn . ' .' > ..... • 
. 

:.,.:.:..-.:•• _ ~•:, ......: '• ~`:::.~ :, ... ;.,.. ::r.: ..: •, _ CheGk,onl .one 
:ApPlicable 8easons . 
;See Step.3;Ab'ove ` Category .. :.: •. 

..................•.  . . . ... . . 
• ..:'•: .~_- . .. .. . :•r• •~.~.:.:•:: ,.. . .. _.•,:.,;.•..;.::. - 

 

Auto (2:2) ❑ A7100 Motor Vehicle - Personal lnjurylProperty DamageMlrongfut. Death 1, 4, 11 

Uninsured Mbtorist• (48) ❑ A7110 Personal Injury/Property DamageNVrongful Death — Uninsured Motorist 1, 4, 11 

 

T7 A6070 Asbesios Propetty Darnage 1, 11 
Asbestos (04) 

❑ A7221 Asbestos- Personal Injury/Wrongful Death 1, 11 

Product Llabliity (24) ❑ A7260 Producl Llability (not asbestos ot to)dc/environmental) 1, 4, 11 

 

Q A7210 Medical Malpractice - Physiclans & Surgeons i', 4, 11 

Medical Malpractice (45) 
❑ A7240 Other ProfOssional Health Care Malpracttce 1 4 11 

 

Q A7250 Premises Liabilily (e.g., stip and fall)  

 

Other Personel 
Injury Pcoperty ful Death (e ❑ A7230 Intentional Bodily Injury/Property DamageANrong .g., 1, 4, 11 

Damage VVrongful assault, vandalism, etc.) 

 

Death (23) ❑ A7270 Inientlonal Infliction of Emotfonal Distress 1' 4' 11 

 

❑ A7220 Other'Personal InjurylProperiy DamagelWrongful Death 
1'  4' 11 

LASC CIV 109 Rev. 1211$ 
CIVIL CASE COVER SHEET ADDENDUM Local Rule 2.3 

ForMandatoryUse 
AND.STATEMENT OF LOCATION Page 1•of4 
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StsoRTTiT Le MELIKYAN V. AMAZON.COM, INC,; et al, CASE NUlABER 

•...,.•. • :. 
: ... .. °,: . .: • .; .., ... _ ..-:... ~ : .. . . ., .•:   • 

`.: "': : " - - - . ~ 
:-... : 

-` 
_ 

. , .: . C;A liCatiTe .:• Pp - 
;Civii`Case Coirer:Sheet .:; . • .• I:?,

•.: 
: ,.: `d,  ;; " ;... ;; :.`: .:';, ;: .; , : ; , jie.:of.qction -:' ':..r, .:' " '~:5 : :'ReasPns;-See'

 

 - ' Step.3 - . . 
.. ..: ..:.. CafegoryNo: . . .. . . . .:...... . . _. . 

. ... . :.:.:,: .; •. ... • , . •: >- _ .: . .;:;• .. .: ..:.: ..:::• •...~: .. 
~. 

;(G ecKonly;one) 
-. : : .. •. _:. . . _ - - .. . ..... . ;.•. :.:..•. ~.. -Above 

Busihess Tort (07) ❑ A6029 Other Commercial/Buslness Tort (nof fraudlbreach of contract) 1, 2,3 

Civil Righls (08) ❑ A6005 Civll Rlghts/Discrlminafion 1, 2, 3 

Defamatlori (13) ❑ A6010 Defamation (slander/libe~ 1, 2, 3 

Fraucl (16) ❑ A6013 Fraud (no contract) 1, 2, 3 

 

❑ A6017 Legal Malpractice 1, 2, 3 
Professional Negligence (25) 

   

❑ A6050 Olher Professional Malpractice (not medical or legal) T, 2,3 

Other (35) ❑ A6025 Olher Non-Personal InjurylProperty Damage loft 1, 2, 3 

Wrongful Terminalion (36) ❑ A6037. Wrongful Termination 1; 2, 3 

 

PI A6024 Other Employment Compiaint Case 1, 2, 3 
Other Employment (15) 

   

.❑ A6109 Labor Commis.sioner Appeais 10 

 

❑ A6004 Breach of RentallLease Contract (not uniawful detainer Or Wrongful 2,5 

 

eviction) 

 

Breach of ConlracU Warrarlty 
(06) ❑ A6008 ConttactM/arranly Breach -Seller Plaintiff (no fraudlnegligence) 

2'  S 

(not insurance) ❑ A6019 Negligent Breach of ContracWVarranty (no fraud) 
1, 2. 5 

 

❑ A6028 Other Breach of ConlracUWarranty (n4t fraud or negl(gence) 
1'  2, 5 

 

❑ A6002 Collections Case-Seller Plaintiff 5, 6, 11 
Collections (09) 

❑ A6012 Olher Promissory NotelCollections Case 6,11 

 

❑ A6034 Collections Case-Purchased Debt (Charged Off Consumer Debi 5, 6, 11 

 

. Purchased on or after January 1 2014 

 

Insurance Coverage (18) ❑ A6015 Insurance Coverage (not compiex) 1, 2, 5, 8 

 

❑ A6009 Contractuai Fraud 1, 2, 3, 5 

OtherConlracl (37) ❑ A6031 7ortlous Interference 1, 2, 3, 5 

 

❑ A6027 Other Contract Dispule(nol breachffnsurance/fraud/negligence) 1, 2, 3, 8, 9 

Eminent Domainlinverse 
Condemnation (14) 

❑ A7300 Eminent DomalnlCondemnation Nuinber of parcels 2,6 

Wrongful Eviction (33) ❑ A6023 Wrongful Eviction Case 2,6 

 

❑ A6018 'Mortgage Foreclosure 2,6 

Other Real PropePty (26) ❑ .A6032 Quiel Title 2,6 

 

❑ A6060 Other Real Property (nol eminent domain, landlordltenant, foreclosure) 2, 6 

Unlawful Detainer-Commeroial 
❑ A6021 Unlawful Detalner-Commerclai (not drugs or wrongful eviclion) 6,11 

(31) 

  

Unlawful Detainer-Residenlial 
❑ AB020 Unlawful DetaTner-Residential (not drugs or Wrongful eviction) 6,11 

32 

  

UnlawFul Oetainer- 
Post-Foreclosure 34 

❑ A6b20FUniawful Aetainer-Post-Foreclosure 2, 6, 11 

Unlawful Delalner-btugs (38) ❑ A6022 Unlawful Detainer-Drugs 2;, B, 1,1 

CIVIL CASE COVER SHEE7 ADDENDUM Local Rul.e 2•3 
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AND STATEMENT OF LOCA"fION Page 2 of 4 
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- . ,. . . . . . .. .. .. .,... -~ Ch k n `ooe ::~'.::.~ :`.•. •:.::~~. :: ec' o i . .....•, . .. • _ . :.:.:...., . _ : :. • .. :... .. 

.. ;(..: .Y. . ..) ... . . . .;.: . . ... :: .: ,;.. ; • :~ 
Abo' e:' v . 

Asset Forfeiture (05) ❑ A8108 Asset Forfeiture Case 2, 3, 6 

Pelition re Arbitration (11) ❑ A6115 Petition to CompeUConfirrnNacatekrbitration 2.5 

 

❑ A6151 Writ - AdministrativeMandamus 2,8 

Writ of Mandate (02) Q A6152 Writ - Mandamus on Ltmited Couit Case Matter 2 

 

❑ A6153 Writ - Other Limlted Coud Case Review 2 

OtherJudicial Revlew(39) ❑ A6150 Other WritlJudicial Review 2.8 

Antitru.stlTrade Regulation (03) ❑ A6003 AntitrusUTrade Regulation 1, 2, 8 

Construction Defect (10) ❑ A6007 Construclion Defeet 1, 2, 3 

Claims Invoiving Mass 7ort 
(40) 

❑ A6006 Claims Invbfving Mass Tort 1, 2, 8 

Securities.Litigation (28) ❑ A6035 Securities Litigation Case 1, 2, 8 

Toxic Tort 
Environmental (30) ❑ A6036 Toxic TortlEnvironmental 1, 2, 3, 8 

Insurance Coverage Claims 
from Complex Case (41) 

❑ A6014 Insurance Coverage/Subrogation (compieic ease only) 1, 2, 5, 8 

 

❑ A6141 Sister State Judgment 2, 5, 11 

 

❑ A6160 Abstract of Jud'gment 2,6 

Enforcement ❑ A6107 Confession of Judgment (non-domestic relations) 2.9 

of Judgment (20) ❑ A6140 Administrative'Agency Award (not unpaid laxes) 2,8 

 

❑ A6114 PetftlonlCertiricate for Entry of Judgment on Unpaid Tax 2.8 

 

❑ AB112 Other Enforcement of Judgrrtenl Case 2, 8, 9 

RICO (27) ❑ A6033 Racketeering (RICO) Case 1, 2, 8 

 

❑ iA6030 Declaratory Relief Only 1, 2, 8 

Other Cbmplaints ❑ A6040 Injunctive ReHef On1y (nof domesliclharassment) 2,8 

(Not Speci}ied Above) (42) ❑ Afi011 Other Commercial Complaint Case (non-torUnon-comptex) 1, 2, 8 

 

❑ A6000 Other Civli Complaint (non-tortlnon-comptex) 1, 2, 8 

Partnership Corporatlon 
Governance (21) 

p.A6113 Partnership and Cotporate Govemance Case 2,8 

 

❑ A6121 Civil Harassnient With Damage"s 2, 3, 9 

 

❑ A6123 Workplace Harassment With Oamages 2, 3, 9 

 

❑ A6124 ElderlDependentAdultAbuse Case With Damages 2, 3, 9 
Other Petitlons (iVot 

  

Specified Above) (43) ❑ . A619Q Electibn Contesl 2 

 

❑ A6110 Pelition for Change of NamelChange of Gender 2.7 

 

❑ A6170 Pelition for Relief from Late Ciaim Law 2, 3, 8 

 

❑ A6100 Other Civil Petition 2. 9 
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ASE NUMBER sNORttiT~.e: MELiKYAN V, AMAZON.COtVt, IN,C.; et al. C  

Step 4: Statement of Reason and Address: Check the appropriate boxes for the numbers shown under Column C for the 

type of action'that you have selected. Enter the address which is the basis forthe filing location, including zip code. 
(No address required for class actidn cases). 

ADDRESS: 

REASON: 

p11.t72.@3.L74. ❑ 5.L16. ❑ 7, ❑ 8.(rl 9. ❑ 10.p11. 

CITY: STATE: I TIP CODEt 

Step 5: Certification of Assignment: I certtfythat this case is properly filed in the C.entral District of 

the Superior Court of Cal'ifornia, County of Los Angeles ['Code CiV. Proc., §392 et seq., and Local Rule 2.3(a)(1.)(E)j. 

1]ated; September 15, 2021 

Uqlls9y Ilgned hY N.Wn lateVh 

Kevin Joseph°ryR•~ vrr:m_~Inlaunn ru~n,>=I,.t 

Farnan
 

ema~Y4m+eplrl+..fYu4Gom. GUS 
o.u:~ov.w.+s uaus o7•at 

(SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEYIFILING PAR'rY) 

PLEASE HAVE THE FOLLOWING ITEMS COMPLETED AND READY TO BE FILED IN ORDER TO PROPERLY 
COMMENCE YOUR NEW COURT CASE: 

1. Original Complalnt or Petition.. 

2. If filing a Complaint, a compieted Summons form for issuance by the Clerk. 

3. Civil Case Cover Sheet, Judicial Council form CM-010, 

4. Civil Case Cover SheetAddendum and Statement of Location form, LACIV 109, LASC Approved 03-04 (Rev. 
02/16). 

5. Payment in fuil of the fiiing fee, unless there is court order for waiver, partial orscheduled payriments. 

6. A signed order appainting the Guardian ad Litem, Judicial Council form CIV-010, if the plaintlff or petitioner is:a 
minor under 18 years df age will be required by Court in order to issue a summons, 

7. Additional copies of documents to be conformed by the Clerk. Copies of the cover sheet and this addendum 
must be served along with the summons and complaint, or other initiating pleading in the case-. 

CIVIL CASE COVER SHEET ADDENDUM Local Rule 2.3 
LASC CIV 109 Rev: 12l18 AND STATEMENT OF LOCATION Page 4 of 4 
For Mandatory Use 
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SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 

pring Street Courthouse 
12 North Spring Street, Los Angeles, CA 90012 

NOTICE OF CASE ASSIGNMENT 

UNLIMITED CIVIL CASE 

FILED 
Se~p-  eti~t Ctsurt af t'.atloruia 

C,~untyof LosAngates 

09/16/2021 
She,eeR. cirw.Emwlvsoil&~-1 Bakdtca,x; 

gY. K. Vargas pWAY 

Your case ls assigned for all purposes to the judicial officer indtcated below. 121 STCV34067 

THIS FORM IS TO BE SERVED WITH TH9 SUMMONS AND COMPLAINT 

ASSIGNED JUDGE DEPT ROOM 

 

ASSIGNED JUDGE DEPT ROOM 

✓ Kenneth R. Freeman 
:::14

 

       

Given to the Plaintiff/Cross-ComplainantlAttorney ofRecord Sherri R. Carter, Executive Officer / Clerk of Court 

on 09/15/2021 By K. Vargas , Deputy Clerk 
(Dnte) 

LACIV 190 (Rev 6/18) NOTtCE OF,CASE ASSIGNMENT — UNLIMITEID CIVIL CASE 
LASC Ap'proved 05/06 
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XNSTRUCTIONS FOR HANDLING UNLIMITED CIVIL CASES 

The following critical provisions of the California Rules of Court, Title 3, Division 7, as applicable in the Superior Court, are summarized 
for your assistance. 

APPLICATION 
T.he Division 7 Rules were effective January 1, 2007. They apply to all general civil cases. 

PRIORITY OVER OTHER RUI.,ES 
The Division 7 Rules shall have priotity over all other Locai Rules to the extent the others are inconsistent. 

CHALLENGE TO ASSIGNED JUDGE 
A challenge under Code of Civil Procedure Seetion 170.6 must be made within 15 days after notice of assignment for all purposes 
to a judge, or if a party has not yet appeared, within 15 days of the first appearance. 

TIME STANDARDS 
Cases assigned to the Independent Calendaring Courts will be subject to processing under the following time standards: 

COMPLAINTS 
All comp}aints shall be served within 60 days of filing and proof of service shall be filed within 90 days. 

CROSS-COMPLAINTS 
Without leave of court first being obtained, no cross-cotnplaint may be filed by any party after their answer is filed. Cross- 
coinplaints shall be seeved within 30 days of the ftling date and a proof of service filed within 60 days of the ftling date. 

STATUS CONFERENCE 
A status conference will be scheduled by the assigned Independent Calendar Judge no later than 270 days after the filing of the 
complaint. Counsel must be fully prepared to discuss the following issues: alternative dispute resolution, bifurcation, settlement, 
trial date, and expert witnesses. 

FINAL STATUS CONFERENCE 
The Court will require the parties to attend a final status conference not more than 10 days before the scheduled trial date, All 
parties shall have tnotions in limine, bifurcation motions, statements of major evidentiary issues, dispositive motions, requested 
form jury instructions, special jury instrnctions, and special jury verdicts tunely filed and served prior to the conference. These 
matters may be heard and resolved at this conference. At least five days before this conference, counsel must also have exchanged 
lists of exliibits and witnesses, and have submitted to the court a brief statement of the case to be read to the jury panel as required 
by Chapter Three of the Los Angeles Superior Court Rules. 

SANCTIONS 
The court will impose appropriate sanctions for the failure or refusal to comply with Chapter Thiee Rules, orders made by the 
Court, and time standards or deadlines established by the Court or by the Chapter Three Rules. Such sanctions may be on a party, 
or if appropriate, on counsel for a party. 

This is not a complete delineation of the Division 7 or Chapter Three Rules, and adherence anly to the above provisions is 
therefore not a gnarantee against the Lmposition of sanctions under Trlal Court Delay Reduction. Careful reading and 
compliance with the actual Chapter Rules is imperative. 

Class Actions 
Pursuant to Local Rule 2.3, all olass actions shall be f►led at the Stanley Mosk Courthouse and are randomly assigned to a complex 
judge at the designated complex courthouse. If the case is found not to be a class action it will be returned to an Independent 
Calendar Courtroom for all purposes. 

*Provisionallv Comulex Cases 
Cases filed as provisionalty complex are initially assigned to the Supervising Judge of complex litigation for detennination of 
complex status. If the case is deemed to be complex within the meaning of California Rules of Court 3.400 et seq., it wili be 
randomly assigned to a compiex judge at the designated complex courthouse. If the case is found not to be complex, it will be 
retiimed to an Independent Calendar Courtroom for all purposes. 

lACIV 190 (Rev 6/18) NOTICE OF CASE ASSIGNMENT - UNLIMITED CIVIL CASE 
I.ASC Approved 05106 
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SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
Civil Division 

Central District, Spring Street Courthouse, Departnient 14 

2.iSTCV34U67 Septcmber 22, 2021 
NAREK MIKE MELIKYAiv vs AMAZON.COM, INC., et al. 10:30 AM 

Judbe: 1-lonorable Kemieth R. Freenian CSR: None 
Judicial. Assistant: B. Gucrrero CRM: None 
Courtroom Assistant: None Dcputy Slieriff: Nonc 

APPEARANCES: 

For Plaintiff(s): No Appearances 

For Defendant(s): No Appearances 

NATURE O:F PROCEEDINGS: Cottrt Ordet• Re: Recusal Pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure 
Section l 7O.1(a)(6)(A)(iii); 

The Court recuses itself on this case. Recusal o1'Judge Kennetli R. Freeman. 

The case is ordered transferred to .ludge David S. Cunnin;hani in Department 1 1 at the Spring 
Street Courthouse for reassignment purposes only. 

Counsel for Plaintiff is to give notice. 

Certificate of Mailing is attached. 

Minute O•der Page ] of 1 

Case 2:21-cv-08715   Document 1-1   Filed 11/04/21   Page 40 of 43   Page ID #:47



SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA ReservedforClerk'sFileSiamp 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
COURTHOUSE ADDRESS: FILED 

Spring Street Courthouse Suparbr Courl c,( C~,lirornia 

312 North Spring Street, Los Angeles, CA 90012 
Countyo( LosAng0hs

09122J2021 
PLAINTIFF/PETITIONER: 

Narek Mike 13v,  Melik an  L,,~,,l.a, y B. ruarraro 

DEFENDANT/RESPONDENT: 

Amazon.com, Inc. et al 

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 
CASE NUMBER: 

21 STCV34067 

I, the below-named Executive Officer/Clerk of the above-entitled court, do hereby certify that I am not a 
party to the cause herein, and that on this date I served the Minute Order (Court Order Re: Recusal 
Pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure S ... ) of 09/22/2021 upon each party or counsel named below by 
placing the document for collection and mailing so as to cause it to be deposited in the United States mail 
at the courthouse in Los Angeles, California, one copy of the original filed/entered herein in a separate 
sealed envelope to each address as shown below with the postage thereon fully prepaid, in accordance 
with standard court practices. 

Joseph Lavi 
LAVI & EBRAHIMIAN, LLP 
8889 W Olympic Blvd 
Suite 200 
Beverly Hills, CA 90211 

Sherri R. Carter, Executive Officer / Clerk of Court 

Dated: 09/22/2021 By: B, Guerrero 
Deputy Clerk 

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 
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SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, CCOUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
Civil Division 

Central District, Spring Street Cotirthouse, Department 11 

21STCV34067 September 30, 2021 
NAREK MIKE MELIKYAN vs AMAZON.COM, INC., et al. 2:32 PM 

Judge: Honorable David S. Cunningham CSR: None 
Judicial Assistant: Patricia Flores ERM: None 
Courtroom Assistant: None Deputy Slieriff: None 

APPEARANCES: 

For Plaintiff(s): No Appearances 

For Defendant(s): No Appearances 

NATURE OF PROCEEDINGS: Court Order Re: Case Reassignment 

This case was ordered transfen•ed to the Assistant Supervising Judge of Complex Civil 
Litigation, Judge David S. Cunningham, for reassignment purposes only. 

The case is reassigned for the following reason: Recusal of Judge Kenneth R. Freeinan. 

Good cause appearing and on order of the Court, the above mattcr is reassigned at the direction 
of the Supervising Judge to Judge Amy D. Hogue in Depai-tment 7 at the Spring Street 
Coui-thouse for all further proceedings. 

Plaintiff is ordered to forthwith serve a copy of this miiiute order on all parties and f le a proof of 
service within seven (7) days of service. 

Certificate of Mailing is attached. 

Minute Order Page 1 of 1 
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SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA ' 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 

COURTHOUSE ADDRESS: 

Spring Street Courthouse 
312 North Spring Street, Los Angeles, CA 90012 

PLAINTIFFlPETITIONER: 

Narek Mike Melikyan 

DEFENDANT/RESPONDENT: 

Amazon.com, Inc. et al 

Reserved for Clerk's File Stamp 

FILED 
Superbr Court of CziliforniS 

Counlyof LosAngafes 

09/3012021 
S'Ics:i Et. C J'r','exacJ:'.e.O3cW J Ca;kafCacri 

By: P. FSures l}.P,iy 

CASE NUMBER: 

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 21 STCV34067 

I, the below-named Executive OfPicer/Clerk of the above-entitled court, do hereby certify that I am not a 
party to the cause herein, and that on this date I served the Minute Order (Court Order Re: Case 
Reassignment) of 09/30/2021 upon each party or counsel named below by placing the document fo.r 
collection and mailing so as to cause it to be deposited in the United States mail at the courthouse in Los 
Angeles, California, one copy of the original filed/entered herein in a separate sealed envelope to each 
address as shown below with the postage thereon fully prepaid, in accordance with standard court 
practices. 

Joseph Lavi 
LAVI & EBRAHIMIAN, LLP 
6889 W Olympic Blvd 
Suite 200 
Beverly Hills, CA 90211 

Sherri R. Carter, Executive Officer / Clerk of Court 

Dated: 09/30/2021 By: P. Flores 
Deputy Clerk 

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 
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